
Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

    BEFORE THE FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF ELECTIONS

                        - - -

In Re:                    :

                          :

Regular Meeting.          :

                        - - -

                     PROCEEDINGS

before Chairman Douglas J. Preisse, Director William

A. Anthony, Jr., Deputy Director Dana Walch, and

Board Members Gregory K. Haas, Bradley K. Sinnott,

and Kimberly E. Marinello, at the Franklin County

Board of Elections, 280 East Broad Street, Columbus,

Ohio, called at 2 p.m. on Tuesday, March 4, 2014.

                        - - -

                ARMSTRONG & OKEY, INC.

          222 East Town Street, Second Floor

              Columbus, Ohio  43215-5201

           (614) 224-9481 - (800) 223-9481

                 Fax - (614) 224-5724

                        - - -



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

2

1 APPEARANCES:

2        Franklin County Prosecutor's Office

       By Mr. Ron O'Brien,

3        Prosecuting Attorney

       and Mr. Harold J. Anderson, III,

4        Assistant Prosecuting Attorney

       373 South High Street

5        Columbus, Ohio 43215

6             On behalf of the Board.

7 ALSO PRESENT:

8      Ms. Suzanne Brown,

     Executive Assistant to the Board.

9

                        - - -

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

3

1                         INDEX

2                         - - -

3 ITEM                                             PAGE

4 Approval of Minutes                                 4

5 Selection of Temporary Chairman                     5

6 Appointment of Director                             6

7 Appointment of Deputy Director                      6

8 Swearing in of Director and Deputy Director         7

9 Appointment of a Chairman                           7

10 Candidate and Issue Protests                        7

11 Candidate Appeals                                 117

12 Kids Voting Contract                              161

13 EMCS Contract                                     163

14 Personnel Matter                                  165

15 Voter Registration Challenge                      166

16 Certify Write-In Candidates                       168

17 Candidate Withdrawals                             168

18 E.E. Ward Contract Extension                      170

19 Adjourn                                           173

20                         - - -

21

22

23

24



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

4

1                           Tuesday Afternoon Session,

2                           March 4, 2014.

3                         - - -

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Good afternoon,

5 everyone.  I would like to call the Franklin County

6 Board of Elections meeting to order.  I will do the

7 roll call.

8             Kimberly Marinello.

9             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Here.

10             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Gregory Haas.

11             MEMBER HAAS:  Here.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Douglas Preisse.

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Here.

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Bradley Sinnott.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Here.

16             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Mr. Chairman, we have

17 a -- all are present.

18             The first item on the agenda,

19 Mr. Chairman, is approval of the minutes of the

20 February 18 board meeting -- February 3 and February

21 18, I'm sorry.

22             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Mr. Chairman, I move

23 that the Board approve the minutes of the February 3,

24 2014, and February 18, 2014, meetings of the Franklin
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1 County Board of Elections as submitted.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Second.

3             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

4             I'll pass this around for you all to

5 sign.

6             All right.  As you all know, this is our

7 reorganization meeting.  The next order of business

8 would be to appoint a temporary chairman for purposes

9 of the reorganization.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, I move that the

11 Board appoint Douglas Preisse as the Temporary

12 Chairman for purpose of reorganization.

13             MEMBER HAAS:  Second.

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

15 Motion carries.

16             Now, Doug is the temporary chairperson,

17 and the next order of business is hiring Dana and

18 myself.

19             MEMBER SINNOTT:  You think.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Well --

21             MEMBER HAAS:  We will have some

22 discussion over that.

23             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  This is the

24 actual purpose we've called you all here.  We're glad
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1 to see a good crowd today.  Thank you for coming.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The first order of

3 business is to appoint a director of the Franklin

4 County Board of Elections.

5             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I move that the Board

6 appoint William Anthony as the Director of the Board

7 of Elections at a compensation rate of $56.94 per

8 hour.

9             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

10             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

11             Thank you.

12             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Congratulations.

13             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Thank you.  Appreciate

14 it.

15             And the next order of business is to

16 appoint the deputy director.

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I move that the Board

18 appoint Dana Walch as the Deputy Director of the

19 Board of Elections at a compensation of $56.94 per

20 hour.

21             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

22             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

23             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

24             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Thank you all.
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1 Appreciate it.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We both appreciate it.

3             And the next item of business is we have

4 to be sworn in, and we have got the Honorable

5 Prosecutor Ron O'Brien to swear us in.

6             MR. O'BRIEN:  I think this is the third

7 time around I've done this for both Dana and Bill, so

8 if you'll raise your right hand and state your name

9 and then repeat after me.

10             (Director and Deputy Director sworn in.)

11             MR. O'BRIEN:  Congratulations.  And if

12 you sign here, I'll swear it.

13             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Again, thank you.

14             The next item on the agenda is to appoint

15 a permanent chairman, chairperson.

16             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I move that the Board

17 appoint Douglas Preisse as Chairman of the Board of

18 Elections.

19             MEMBER HAAS:  Second.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

21 So moved.

22             Congratulations, Mr. Preisse, Chairman of

23 the Board.

24             The next item on the agenda is to hear
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1 the protests.  And the first one before us today

2 would be the Marco Miller protest for the Ohio Senate

3 District 3.  And that's in your packet.

4             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Bill, if I

5 remember right -- wait.  We usually handle this the

6 protestor or counsel on behalf of the protestor would

7 come forward first to state their case, and then the

8 candidate and/or counsel on behalf of the candidate

9 being protested follows after that, if that makes

10 sense to everybody.  I believe that's the way we have

11 done it before.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yes, it is.

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  So we'll

14 proceed that way.  Welcome, Stuart, and if you would

15 please state your name and address and who you are

16 here for for the record.

17             MR. DORNETTE:  Yes.  Thank you,

18 Mr. Chairman.  I am Stuart Dornette.  I'm a lawyer

19 with Taft, Stettinius & Hollister.  I am here on

20 behalf of the Protestor Christy Blackburn.  If -- I

21 have a written submission, if I may provide it to the

22 Board.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Sure.  Ben, I think

24 there is some feedback.  I am not sure if you are in
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1 charge of the audio.  Maybe you could turn it down,

2 see to it.

3             MR. DORNETTE:  What -- as I said, I am

4 here on behalf of Christy Blackburn.  Ms. Blackburn

5 is a resident of the 3rd Senate District.  She is a

6 registered voter in good standing with the Board of

7 Elections, and she has voted in the Democratic

8 Primaries in 2012, 2010, and several ones before

9 that.  So under Ohio Revised Code Section 3513.05,

10 she is an appropriate person to file a protest.

11             She did file a protest to the nominating

12 petitions of Mr. Miller on the 21st of February,

13 2014, which is within the time prescribed in the

14 statute for the filing of such a protest.

15             What I have provided to the Board is a

16 packet that includes her protest letter, copies of

17 the petitions, the report that the Board made, and

18 when the Board reviewed the petitions, the Board --

19 initially the Board found that there were 52 valid

20 signatures on the petitions, 18 invalid signatures on

21 the petitions, and that sent out the Board report.

22             Also attached is a copy of the Directive

23 2014-02 from the Secretary of State that are

24 instructions for how to go through and look at
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1 petitions.  And then we have the affidavit of Vickie

2 Willard.  Vickie Willard is a person who has spent 40

3 years in training and practice looking at handwriting

4 analysis, handwriting identification, and comparison.

5 And we asked her to take a look at some of the

6 signatures that were on the petitions.

7             And then finally is the affidavit of

8 Christy Blackburn herself attesting to her

9 qualifications to be a protestor.  And then at the

10 outset is a brief memorandum that outlines the

11 positions that Ms. Blackburn would want this Board to

12 be aware of with respect to this protest.

13             As I said, there were 52 signatures on

14 the petition.  The law requires that there be 50, a

15 minimum of 50, and what I would like to talk about

16 here are 6 of those 52 which we believe were not

17 appropriately recognized as signatures on this -- on

18 these petitions.  The first one is that of the

19 candidate himself, Marco Miller.  His signature is on

20 the last of the petitions.  It's the last signature

21 on the last petitions.  The 1971 Ohio Supreme Court

22 decision State, ex rel. Kucinich versus Duffy

23 provides that under 3513.05 the signature of the

24 candidate himself cannot be counted as one of the
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1 minimum number of signatures required in order to

2 validate the petition.

3             The statutory language today, in material

4 parts, remains the same as it did in 1971.  I think

5 that issue resolves whether Mr. Miller is properly

6 counted.  He should not have been counted.  That's

7 our first one.

8             Roger Longfellow, petition No. 0730, line

9 7 is accepted as a signature of Roger Longfellow of

10 Daventry Lane in Gahanna.  Ms. Willard has looked at

11 his signature, compared his signature on the petition

12 with his signature on the BOE card, and concludes

13 that those were signed by two different people.  And

14 she has a close analysis of what that is.  We set out

15 the two signatures on page 4 of our brief.  They are

16 also set out in Ms. Willard's affidavit.

17             James Timmons was a signature accepted,

18 petition 0730, line 11 also in Gahanna on Imperial

19 Drive.  Mr. Timmons according to the records of the

20 Board is 21 years old, first registered a little over

21 a year ago in December of 2012, and as you can tell

22 at the top of page 5 of our brief, his signatures are

23 very, very different between Mr. Timmons when he

24 registered and indeed Mr. Timmons who signed this
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1 petition.  Again, Ms. Willard in her affidavit states

2 that the signatures simply do not match.  Under 20 --

3 Directive 2014-02 signatures that do not match should

4 not be counted.

5             Tanya Faulk was credited initially by the

6 Board as having signed line 9 of petition 0729.  Page

7 5 of our brief we show her signature with the Board

8 of Elections and petition signature.  We also have as

9 a tab in the back two mortgages for the property --

10 two mortgages signed by Jamie Faulk and Tanya Faulk,

11 and if you look at the signature on the petition and

12 the signature on the mortgage of Jamie Faulk, the two

13 match.  And, again, if you look at the signature on

14 the mortgages of Tanya Faulk, it matches the Board of

15 Elections' signatures.  We would submit the signature

16 on the petition is clearly that of Jamie Faulk, not

17 of Tanya Faulk.  Jamie Faulk is not a registered

18 voter in Franklin County.

19             Ms. Willard also looked at the signature

20 that was credited to Terrance Allen of Brice Dale

21 Drive in Canal Winchester.  There are two registered

22 voters at that address.  One is Mr. Allen; one is

23 Evelyn Bailey.  Ms. Willard concluded that the

24 signature which is not recognizable on the petition
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1 does not match either of those two voters'

2 signatures.

3             Finally, the 5th line of petition 0730 is

4 accepted as that of registered voter Chloe Beyer.

5 The signature, however, on the petition is not

6 Ms. Beyer's name at all.  It is Chloe something else

7 that starts with an H.  And in State, ex rel. Rogers

8 versus Taft 1992 the Ohio Supreme Court addressed

9 just such circumstance in which the petition's

10 signature was Loretta Sheldon and the signature on

11 file with the board was Loretta Floyd-Sheldon and

12 rejection of that was what the Supreme Court said was

13 appropriate at the petition stage.

14             That is the evidence with 6 invalid

15 signatures out of the 52.  Taking those out leaves

16 fewer than 50 required.  On behalf of Ms. Blackburn

17 we would ask this Board to reject the nominating

18 petition of Mr. Miller.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Mr. Dornette.

20             MR. DORNETTE:  Yes.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Before you sit down,

22 thank you, and I think maybe we have some questions

23 from the Board members for you.

24             MR. DORNETTE:  Yes.
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1             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I have some.  Thank you,

2 Mr. Dornette.  The memorandum in support of the

3 protest and the Willard affidavit, we are seeing

4 these for the first time now, correct?

5             MR. DORNETTE:  Yes, your Honor; yes, sir.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Have they been served or

7 shared in any respect with the candidate?

8             MR. DORNETTE:  They have not.

9             MEMBER SINNOTT:  The protest by

10 Ms. Blackburn raises challenge to more than six

11 signatures.  Would you ask that we focus our inquiry

12 on the six signatures that you reviewed in your oral

13 presentation?

14             MR. DORNETTE:  Yes.  There were 14.  The

15 6 are included among the 14.

16             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Mr. Anderson, when last

17 we gathered, you mentioned the existence of some case

18 law having to do with affidavit evidence and

19 determination of signature validity in the context of

20 protest; am I recalling that correctly?

21             MR. ANDERSON:  Completely different

22 issues.

23             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.

24             MR. DORNETTE:  If I may, Ms. Willard has
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1 a shoulder problem, and she is recovering from

2 surgery or she would have driven here, but she was

3 not able to.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  And the candidate's

5 signature was a part of the Board's count of 52 valid

6 signatures, correct?

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That's correct.

8             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Those are my questions

9 for Mr. Dornette.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  I guess I have a question

11 for both our staff and Mr. Dornette.  I'm familiar

12 with many cases where candidates have signed their

13 own petition over the years.  And this is the first

14 time that I've seen one knocked off.  My question is,

15 if I'm not mistaken, Mr. Kucinich in 1971 was running

16 for mayor for the city of Cleveland or perhaps city

17 council of Cleveland.  Is this case law specific to

18 Cleveland-specific issues, or does this apply to all

19 races?

20             MR. ANDERSON:  Uh-huh.

21             MR. DORNETTE:  Did you get -- the answer

22 is it was --

23             MEMBER HAAS:  We got the answer.

24             MR. DORNETTE:  Yes.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any other questions

2 for Mr. Dornette?  I think we'll reserve the

3 privilege of calling you back, if we may.  And I

4 think perhaps the opposite side is represented here

5 as well.

6             MR. DORNETTE:  Thank you.

7             MS. STEWART:  Hello.  My name is

8 Catherine Stewart, and I am representing the

9 candidate Mr. Marco Miller on our response to the

10 protest on his signatures for the May 6, 2014,

11 Primary Election.

12             First of all, I think it's kind of weird

13 that we were told 14 signatures, and all of a sudden

14 it's knocked down to 6.  It kind of, you know, makes

15 it look like it was frivolous claims; and, oh, we

16 found these six.  There might be a little bit more.

17             From looking at our things to

18 specifically address the signatures that they brought

19 into question, the first being part petition 729,

20 line 9 which is Tanya Faulk --

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  One moment, I'm sorry.

22 Give members an opportunity.  I think you are asking

23 us to call our attention to that specific petition.

24             MEMBER HAAS:  Page 5.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Which petition is that

2 again?

3             MS. STEWART:  729, line 9.

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  It's on the first page

5 of your.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Protest?

7             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Your exhibit.

8             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Yeah.  If you

9 look at your exhibit toward the back, we've provided

10 each of you with a sort of side-by-side comparison of

11 the signatures that were contained within the

12 original protest.

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So we are looking at

14 the exhibit?

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Yes.

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  And it's not --

17             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Look toward the

18 back, Mr. Chairman, of that exhibit.

19             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  First page.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So we are looking at a

21 side-by-side signature comparison.

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  So the second one

23 on there is the one that she brings up of Tanya

24 Faulk, correct?



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

18

1             MS. STEWART:  Yes.

2             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Are we ready for

3 her to proceed, Mr. Chairman?

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes, thank you.

5             MS. STEWART:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

6 Looking at this there is a little bit of a line from

7 the signature on line 19, I think that was when it

8 was approved, that goes up and strikes through the

9 signature.  But if you look at the F and the K, we

10 believe that they were a match.  It's also a much

11 smaller area to sign than on the voter registration

12 form, so we believe that that was a match.

13             Mr. Marco Miller gathered the signatures

14 during a snowstorm and below zero windchills on a

15 clipboard outside so this also could have played into

16 the fact why the signatures may not match.  And I

17 apologize.  We were not provided with the evidence

18 from the other side to look at that and the other

19 evidence that they had gathered for this particular

20 signature so I cannot speak to that.

21             The next signature is on the same part

22 petition, and it is line 14.  Again, we had made many

23 efforts to gather that signature, that of Evelyn

24 Bailey.  We had made many attempts this past week to
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1 go to her house to get an affidavit from her signed,

2 and unfortunately she's out of town.

3             If you look at her signature and the

4 records at the Board of Elections, again, remember it

5 was signed in below zero windchills in the middle of

6 a snowstorm, she signed only her first name and

7 squiggle for the rest of it in Bailey, but if you

8 look at her first name, you can definitely tell that

9 there is evidence that would suggest she did sign

10 that.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

12             MS. STEWART:  On the next signature on

13 the claim it is on part petition 730, line 5.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What's the name?

15             MS. STEWART:  Chloe Beyers or Beyer.  We

16 were told by Board of Elections' employees that if

17 someone gets married and signs under their new name

18 at the time on a petition, that would not be

19 disqualified.  She is registered under the name Chloe

20 Beyer, but since that time she got married to the

21 person ahead of her on the list of signatures,

22 Matthew Hirrell.  If you look at her signature on the

23 part petition, it matches the records for Chloe's

24 first name completely from the Board of Elections'
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1 database of her signatures.

2             The next signature is on the same part

3 petition, line 7, which is that of Roger Longfellow.

4 Again, we think there is enough evidence looking at

5 the signatures that it was from the same hand.

6 Again, please remember that it was below zero

7 windchills and in the middle of a snowstorm when we

8 gathered these signatures.

9             And the next claim is also on that same

10 part petition, line 11, James Timmons.  Again, we

11 think that there is enough with how the N and the S

12 and the S in James all fit.  If you think about it,

13 the line that is on file with the Board of

14 Elections --

15             MEMBER HAAS:  I'm sorry, which signature

16 are we looking at?

17             MS. STEWART:  It was the same part

18 petition, line 11.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Which petition?

20             MS. STEWART:  It's the same one, 730.

21             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Line 11.

22             MS. STEWART:  Line 11.

23             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  James Timmons.

24             MS. STEWART:  Yes.  We believe there was
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1 some characteristics in the lettering that would say

2 it was from the same person.  Also looking from the

3 BOE records it was a much larger space in that one

4 for a signature compared to that on the part

5 petition.

6             And then as we responded in our response

7 to the protest, the signature of Marco Miller who is

8 the candidate, we agree he was wrongly advised he may

9 sign his own petitions and that is stated in our

10 answer.

11             Do you have any questions?

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Ms. Stewart, are you a

13 lawyer?

14             MS. STEWART:  I am not.  I am just

15 representing Marco.

16             MEMBER SINNOTT:  As I understand the

17 protest that has been modified by protestor's counsel

18 today, we are focused on six particular signatures in

19 question.  And I understand you have not had the

20 benefit of seeing the memorandum --

21             MS. STEWART:  No.  We were not provided

22 any information on that.

23             MEMBER SINNOTT:  -- that was disclosed.

24             MS. STEWART:  And the information I just
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1 provided you were directly from those six claims.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Ms. Stewart, I would

3 like for you to have an opportunity to offer

4 commentary on the six signatures in question.

5             Dana, could you deliver that to her.

6             MS. STEWART:  Thank you.

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  You're welcome.

8             MEMBER HAAS:  We as a Board did put

9 Mr. Miller -- based on the advice of staff review,

10 the Board acted to put Mr. Miller on the ballot.  And

11 it seems to me that there is some obligation with

12 this, not just with Mr. Miller but with the Board

13 too, I mean, this is actually the approval of the

14 Board of these signatures which is being challenged.

15 So I think that in terms of how we determine these

16 signatures are good, that it's not -- it is not just

17 the campaign and the petitions itself that's being

18 challenged here but our approval.

19             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Uh-huh.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Ms. Stewart, having had

21 the very brief benefit of seeing the memorandum in

22 support of the protest, is there any additional

23 commentary you would like to offer on the six

24 signatures that are now before us?
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1             MS. STEWART:  Not at this time.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any other questions of

3 Ms. Stewart?

4             Thank you very much.

5             MS. STEWART:  Thank you.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So we are being

7 asked -- Greg, if I'm -- I'm not sure I understood

8 your comment a moment ago.

9             MEMBER HAAS:  I think that my comment is

10 primarily on that based on the standard that our

11 staff uses to consider a signature a valid signature,

12 the decision was made in these particular cases that

13 it was close enough that it fit.  Otherwise we

14 wouldn't have put Mr. Miller on the ballot in the

15 first place.  We wouldn't have approved the

16 petitions.

17             So I think that if we are -- if our

18 standard here is what's being challenged, then we

19 also are in a position of looking at why -- why we

20 signed off on these in the first place and to me, you

21 know, there is certainly some of these where you can

22 see significant difference but not complete

23 difference.  And there is at least with -- with each

24 of these some -- I'm assuming staff made the decision
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1 that -- that there was enough similarity for us to

2 consider it the correct person.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think, as has been

4 in the case in the past, this may be a question of

5 the Board examining these signatures and

6 attempting -- factor in your -- your observations

7 that the Board did act upon certain staff

8 recommendations.

9             Having said that, we have before us a

10 proper protest, and inasmuch as we are all aware of

11 human error before and after approvals, I think baked

12 into the system is the acknowledgment that may

13 happen.  That's why we have protests and next stage

14 examinations.  So it may be that we -- we ought to

15 look at these signatures one by one --

16             MEMBER HAAS:  Absolutely.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  -- and perhaps reach

18 consensus, perhaps we do not.

19             MEMBER HAAS:  I concur.  My point is

20 largely to do with a -- with what this individual

21 handwriting expert determined is valid versus our

22 policy to determine what's valid.  Those may not be

23 the same.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  So noted.
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  In each of your

2 packets as we discussed is a -- is a side-by-side

3 comparison of what -- of the 14 signatures that were

4 in the original protest and next to them is a copy of

5 the signature that we do have on file here for voter

6 registration purposes for each of the 14 that were

7 in -- in question in the original protest so those

8 are in your packets before you and if we could

9 proceed however obviously the Board feels is

10 required.

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  As to my colleagues, let

12 me make a recommendation and tweak this as you will.

13 We having modified protests before, it seems to call

14 into question only 6 of the 14 signatures identified

15 in the original protest so I think we can focus our

16 attention on those 6 and the determination we'll have

17 to make as to each and I think it makes sense for us

18 to do this on a signature-by-signature basis is

19 whether the signature on the petition is the

20 signature on record with the Board.

21             MEMBER HAAS:  Perhaps start with who the

22 six are.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  The six would be --

24             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Page 1,
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1 Talbert --

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Should we just refer

3 to this document?

4             MEMBER HAAS:  Stay with ours.  I think if

5 we go with ours.

6             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Our documents do

7 contain all 14.

8             MEMBER HAAS:  I would like to go through

9 our document because as I look at this, I notice

10 some -- I am sure this is a function of copying but

11 what I would consider some minor discrepancies what

12 we've listed as the signatures on file and what are

13 in the complaint so I would prefer to stick with our

14 document and just run through it and pick the six.

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  And if at any

16 stage of the process I do have -- I do have the

17 actual original petition here with us today if there

18 is any question about a signature that was on the

19 petition, if you want to look at.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Now --

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I don't have an

22 objection to using --

23             MEMBER HAAS:  I don't think we have any

24 objection to Mr. Miller being taken off.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Let's take your advice

2 and do it as orderly as we can and start with the

3 Board exhibit and then which would start us I think

4 with --

5             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I don't believe

6 Mr. Talbert is any longer at issue.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  So then I think

8 we move on so -- I think what you and I are doing is

9 looking at this protest and Board document on our

10 right, and when they match, we'll --

11             MEMBER HAAS:  Right.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  And so the first --

13 the next one would be --

14             MEMBER HAAS:  Faulk which is in the

15 protest.

16             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Tanya Faulk is in

17 the six.

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It's one of the six.

19 And okay.  I'm looking at it.  We are all, the Board,

20 looking at it.

21             MEMBER SINNOTT:  So we want to act on

22 Talbert first?

23             MEMBER HAAS:  No.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Talbert is not on it.
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1 We are going to Faulk.  In the Board's material we

2 see on the left a facsimile of the petition where the

3 No. 9 is, right?

4             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That's correct,

5 Mr. Chairman.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  And on the right the

7 signature of Tanya Faulk on file.  I believe we heard

8 testimony there is no James Faulk registered?

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That is correct,

10 Mr. Chairman.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Do you want to

12 vote on these?

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yeah.  I think we need

14 to decide them on an individual basis because they

15 each have entirely different questions.

16             MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Chairman, that has

17 been your practice in the past on each specific

18 signature.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Then I'll start off.

20 To my eyes there is a James something on the left

21 which I take is Faulk and there's a Tanya on the

22 right and these are not -- appears to me they are not

23 at all the same signature.  Irrespective of the

24 commentary I think it was striked from below, that
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1 does not materially alter what appears to be James to

2 me on the left.  Anybody wish to proffer their

3 opinion?

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I do.  I want to make

5 sure that we are proceeding in a fashion that creates

6 a good record for the Secretary if the Secretary is

7 going to weigh in or perhaps review in court.  What

8 is it that -- I'll ask our counsel this.  What is it

9 that makes the clearest record as to what the Board

10 is doing?  Do you want us to vote individually on

11 striking a signature or including a signature or how?

12             MR. ANDERSON:  You are voting on each

13 signature to determine if it's invalid so you're

14 voting on invalidity.  Otherwise the presumption

15 would be that the Board's previous action relative to

16 that signature was correct.

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  So it sounds as though

18 the Chairman is moving to find invalid the Faulk

19 signature.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah.  I would put

21 that in the form of a motion.  Then I think a

22 discussion of the motion.  You can comment on what

23 your opinion is.

24             MR. O'BRIEN:  I think I would vote to
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1 either uphold or deny the protest as to that

2 particular signature.  There is six signatures that

3 they made a protest to.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Then I would --

5             MR. ANDERSON:  And Mr. Miller's signature

6 which we can't -- which is a little bit different

7 issue than this, but we don't want to forget that is

8 still at issue.

9             MEMBER HAAS:  Yeah.  We will start with

10 that so we can get to this purely.

11             MR. ANDERSON:  That might be the cleanest

12 way to proceed with that.

13             MEMBER HAAS:  I will make a motion to

14 strike Mr. Miller's signature, to uphold the protest.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I would uphold the

16 protest of Mr. Miller as well.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  In favor, yes, I would

18 too.

19             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Seconded.  All in

21 favor.

22             That's minus 1.

23             MEMBER HAAS:  Can we call Ms. Stewart

24 back up?
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think if you have a

2 question, you can.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  Ms. Stewart?

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Dornette or Stewart?

5             MEMBER HAAS:  Ms. Stewart.

6             MS. STEWART:  Yes.

7             MEMBER HAAS:  What is the -- explain the

8 signature the best you can to me in terms of James

9 and Tanya which is clearly a signature of first name.

10             MS. STEWART:  It appeared as though in

11 Tanya's case there was enough similarity when we were

12 looking at the computer systems and James Timmons --

13             MEMBER HAAS:  Not James Timmons, Faulk.

14             MEMBER MARINELLO:  The first name looks

15 like James Faulk.

16             MEMBER HAAS:  Okay.  You mentioned

17 something about striking the line.

18             MS. STEWART:  There is a line from the

19 approval of the signature below that one that went up

20 through the first name if you look on the part

21 petition.

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I do have an

23 actual copy of the part petition right here.  That

24 was the actual petition.  There are some lines on
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1 there as the petition -- as the folks are checking

2 the petitions, they do make markings in there in red

3 ink, and one of them got up into that signature a

4 little bit.

5             MEMBER HAAS:  There's just a James Faulk

6 there so I have to vote to -- I second the upholding

7 the striking of that signature.

8             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I would as well.  I

9 would vote to uphold the protest.

10             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a motion?

11             MR. ANDERSON:  Mr. Sinnott made the

12 motion.

13             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

14             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  This is for Tanya

16 Faulk.  All those in favor of upholding the protest.

17             That's negative 2 now.

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Proceed in our

19 document.  We come to Ashley Magger which I don't

20 think is part of the six.

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  No, it's not part

22 of the six.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So we'll pass that.

24 And then Terrance Allen which, I think, is part of
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1 the six.  I would -- I am not sure I understand.  I

2 don't -- I do not find any similarity between the

3 signature on the right of line 14 and the Terrance

4 Allen or Evelyn Bailey on the left.  So I would move

5 that as there is no similarity, we would uphold the

6 protest.

7             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I second that on the

8 ground I can't find any similarity either.

9             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Which signature are we

10 looking at?  Terrance Allen?  Petition 749, line 14.

11             MR. ANDERSON:  Yes.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  It's been moved and

13 seconded.  Are you ready for the vote?

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.  I don't know --

15 I don't want to push you if you're thinking.

16             MEMBER HAAS:  Could we see the petition?

17             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  You bet.  It's on

18 line 14.

19             MEMBER HAAS:  I'll concur.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So we'll ask for a

21 vote.

22             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor of

23 upholding -- upholding the protest say aye.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  The next signature on
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1 the Board exhibit, Brad, you absconded with this.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Nicholas Swint.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I don't think that's

4 of the six, is it?  So we'll pass by that one.

5             MEMBER SINNOTT:  After that would be

6 Matthew Hirrell which I don't believe is any longer

7 at issue.

8             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I think that's

9 correct.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Chloe Beyer comes next.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  That is one that is in

12 question.

13             MEMBER HAAS:  It's at issue, right?

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Right.

15             MEMBER HAAS:  Counsel's advice on married

16 name versus the name on file.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Right.  And I am going

18 to --

19             MEMBER HAAS:  I would like to hear from

20 counsel.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Oh, yeah, I'm sorry.

22 I was going to ask the same question.  I didn't know

23 you posed a direct question.  This is where I think

24 Mr. Dornette referenced the 1992 Rogers versus Taft
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1 decision I made note of.

2             MR. O'BRIEN:  Could she have updated her

3 Board of Elections up to 30 days before the next

4 election reflecting that married name change?

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Did you say would she

6 or could she?

7             MR. O'BRIEN:  Could she have?

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Could she have?

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  She can certainly

10 update her name, a name change, any time she would

11 like.  So she, you know, could make -- obviously we

12 get those all the time of somebody changing their

13 name so, you know, if she was still under her old

14 name, she can update it when she goes to vote.  Maybe

15 she would have to vote a provisional ballot, but she

16 would be offered a ballot if she went to vote.  Chloe

17 Beyer -- Chloe McKenzie Beyer is registered at 348

18 Empire Drive, but she signed as Chloe Hirrell.

19             MR. ANDERSON:  She has the ability to

20 update her registration.  She should have updated her

21 registration.

22             MEMBER HAAS:  First name clearly

23 indicates is the same person.

24             MR. ANDERSON:  It looks like it's the
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1 same person.

2             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Right.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  I'm going to make a motion

4 to reject the protest.

5             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

6             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

7             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Ready for a vote?

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think we are in

9 discussion stage still as it relates to Brad's

10 contemplation.

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I think counting the

12 signature would be contrary to the instructions of

13 the Supreme Court in the Rogers case.  I offer that

14 by way of discussion.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  How tightly are our

16 hands tied, counselor, by what the court has

17 suggested?  Are you looking at that?

18             MR. ANDERSON:  I don't have that

19 particular case with me, I'm sorry, Chairman Preisse.

20             MR. O'BRIEN:  I'm putting it here in the

21 phone.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Shall we pause on that

23 one and move on?

24             MEMBER HAAS:  I guess I have a logistical
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1 question -- have we done six yet?

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Not yet.  Did we get

3 to Longfellow yet?  Chew on that and we will go onto

4 another?

5             Okay.  Brad, did you want to tell us what

6 the next name on the Board's exhibit is?  Brad, after

7 Chloe?

8             MEMBER SINNOTT:  We are now at Jennifer

9 Miller which is no longer at issue.  Then we come to

10 Roger Longfellow that is part of the current protest.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Roger Longfellow.

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Dana, are there two

13 voters registered at the Longfellow address?

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I believe so,

15 Mr. Sinnott.  I'm checking that real quick on file

16 but I believe that is why we included another

17 signature in there but I'm going to pull it up real

18 quick on our file to make sure.  Mr. Sinnott, at 546

19 there is Dakota M. Gilliam and a Roger D. Longfellow

20 who are registered voters at that address.  And both

21 those signatures are in the exhibit provided.

22             MEMBER SINNOTT:  It's plainly not the

23 bottom signature.

24             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  If the members
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1 would like, here is the actual petition.  On line 7

2 is the signature in question.

3             I have the actual registration brought up

4 here if anybody would like to see it.  I'm a little

5 hesitant to move the computer.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What do you have

7 there?

8             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  The signature on

9 the last registration card we have does appear to

10 mirror what is on the first line of our signature on

11 file.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So this was taken from

13 that?

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That's correct.

15 This is the last voter registration card we have for

16 Roger Longfellow.

17             MEMBER HAAS:  For Roger Longfellow.  Who

18 was the other person that was registered at that

19 address?

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Dakota Gilliam

21 and there is the signature that appears to be one

22 that's replicated on your exhibit.

23             MEMBER HAAS:  Okay.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Have the members had
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1 enough time to ponder that?  I don't find any

2 similarity between either -- I have looked at both

3 signatures of who appears to be registered at that

4 address and neither one of them seems to match the

5 petition to my eyes so I would move we uphold the

6 protest as it relates to petition 0730, line 7.

7             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I will second that for

8 reasons stated.

9             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  There was a motion

10 already on the floor for that.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  We passed on that one.

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I thought we tabled

13 that.

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  There was one for

15 Longfellow too.

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  That's the one we are

17 doing now.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Can you read back -- I

19 thought we had a motion for that one and we were

20 waiting.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think --

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  There was a

23 motion that was on the Chloe Beyer --

24             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yeah, I know.
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  -- the one that

2 was tabled to discuss that issue.  And then we passed

3 over Jennifer Miller to then get to Roger Longfellow.

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I thought that Haas

5 moved to accept that and Kim seconded it and then.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  That was on Chloe.

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I believe that

8 was on Chloe.

9             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  There was a motion on

10 the floor for Longfellow to -- properly moved and

11 seconded to uphold the protest.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Aye.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Aye.

14             MEMBER HAAS:  No.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Roll-call vote on that

16 one.

17             Kim Marinello.

18             MEMBER MARINELLO:  No.

19             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Greg Haas.

20             MEMBER HAAS:  No.

21             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Doug Preisse.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.

23             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  And Bradley Sinnott.

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.
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1             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We have a tie vote for

2 that one.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  The big area you get into

4 no similarity, and I certainty would agree it is not

5 very similar, but it's also -- to me there is a

6 couple of motions in the line that weren't -- justify

7 what the Board itself approved, the signature.

8             MEMBER SINNOTT:  The next one up is James

9 Timmons.  That is a part of the current protest.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  Can we see the petition on

11 that?  I don't know if it's the same one or not.

12             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yeah, 730.

13             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Line 11 on the

14 petition you have in your hand, Mr. Haas.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Can I see the -- yeah,

16 I want to see the petition when you are done with it.

17             When did this -- do you have the voter

18 registration card?

19             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I do.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  When was it signed?

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  It was signed on

22 October 23, 2012.  October 23, 2012, yes.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is anybody else

24 registered at that address?
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  343 Imperial

2 Drive, there is a Cindy Miller, a Marcy Timmons, and

3 that is all and then James Timmons is also there too.

4             MEMBER HAAS:  I think one of the issues

5 here is obviously that the -- again with the

6 signatures being exact versus similarities, and I

7 would point out two things.  While these are clearly

8 very different signatures there is what appears

9 almost to be a Z at the end of the name James in both

10 signatures which I think is highly unusual and I

11 think in both of them, if you look at it, you see a Z

12 instead of an S.  I think you see a U right before

13 the S in the name Timmons in both signatures.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I would move to deny

15 the protest on petition -- this petition.

16             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  James Timmons.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  731, James Timmons.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I'll second.

19             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those -- all those

20 in favor.

21             MEMBER HAAS:  We're talking about this

22 one.

23             MEMBER MARINELLO:  James Timmons.  You

24 are denying the protest so it's good.



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

43

1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  So we rejected the

3 protest, right?

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.

5             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That's correct.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  That takes us over to

7 James Mock who is no longer at issue.  Christine Mike

8 no longer at issue.  Mary Hill no longer an issue.

9 Isn't there someone left?

10             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  The only one left

11 was the candidate himself.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We voted on that one.

13 The Board voted on that one.

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  We tabled for a

15 moment petition No. 730, line No. 5.

16             MEMBER SINNOTT:  What's the name?

17             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That was Chloe.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Okay.

19             MR. ANDERSON:  We've looked.  Ron was

20 able to pull the case up, and I am going to quote

21 from the Supreme Court case the protestor brought up

22 with respect to this signature of Chloe Beyer.  "The

23 Board invalidated the signature since it has no way

24 of knowing whether Loretta Sheldon and Loretta
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1 Floyd-Sheldon are the same person.  The relator's

2 affidavit stating that Mary Sheldon said she is the

3 same person registered as Mary Floyd-Sheldon is not

4 only inadmissible hearsay it is not relevant to the

5 issue of Loretta Sheldon's identity.  Thus, we hold

6 that the Board did not abuse its discretion or

7 otherwise in refusing to accept the signature."

8             So I think that the clear application to

9 this case is that in the absence of any direct

10 evidence that Chloe Beyer has either legally changed

11 her name or been married and changed her name through

12 marriage to Chloe Hirrell I think the Board proper --

13 the Board has no discretion to accept that as a valid

14 signature.

15             MEMBER HAAS:  That case was in 1992?

16             MR. ANDERSON:  That case was in 1992.

17             MEMBER HAAS:  Has there been anything

18 since?

19             MR. ANDERSON:  No.

20             MEMBER HAAS:  And the question is -- as I

21 understand it, the question is whether or not -- I

22 think the point that was made is that there was no

23 way to know that the two people were the same in the

24 case.
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1             MR. ANDERSON:  Correct.

2             MEMBER HAAS:  We have two identical first

3 signatures, first names, both the petition and the

4 Board of registration card.  To me that's evidence

5 that is the same person.

6             MR. ANDERSON:  Well, except they have

7 different surnames so --

8             MEMBER HAAS:  We are ruling people off

9 because the name isn't the same, and they are

10 allegedly not the same person.  We have identical

11 first names.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  As was the case they

13 were comparing as well.

14             MR. ANDERSON:  Correct, it was the same

15 set of circumstances.  They are comparing Mary

16 Sheldon or Loretta Sheldon versus Loretta

17 Floyd-Sheldon.

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It wasn't an issue

19 whether they looked or even were very close.

20             MR. ANDERSON:  Correct.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It was an issue --

22             MEMBER HAAS:  I still say there is no

23 evidence that it's the same person.

24             MR. ANDERSON:  Correct.  And --
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Was there an affidavit

2 involved in that?

3             MR. ANDERSON:  I believe there was an

4 affidavit -- there was an affidavit involved in that

5 case.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  There was evidence of

7 a sort that deemed inadmissible --

8             MR. ANDERSON:  Inadmissible.

9             MEMBER HAAS:  We can't see the first name

10 in that case.  We don't know in that case there was a

11 similarity or not.

12             MR. O'BRIEN:  Well, I think what they

13 said here the name doesn't match.  You have got one

14 name on your signature card, one name on the

15 petition.  They don't match.  We have no way of

16 knowing if they are the same people.  And there is no

17 evidence to establish that.

18             I think if Loretta had showed up at that

19 hearing in this case or if Chloe had showed up today,

20 said "I'm Loretta" or "I'm Chloe, I'm here, I got

21 married" or "I use a hyphenated sometimes, sometimes

22 I don't," then I think they would have accepted it

23 because it was the same person and established for

24 the purposes.  But they said you have to go just on
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1 the names is what -- the way it reads.

2             MS. STEWART:  May I add something,

3 Mr. Chairman?

4             MEMBER HAAS:  If it's about Chloe.  If

5 it's something else --

6             MS. STEWART:  It's about Chloe.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah, go ahead.

8             MS. STEWART:  The person that signed the

9 part petition right before her is -- I think it's

10 Matthew Hirrell, and he is at the same address, so it

11 would give more evidence to the fact that they have

12 now become married and are living in the same

13 address.  And also we were told it was Board policy

14 on accepting people that got married so wouldn't this

15 bring question to a lot of signatures on other

16 petitions as well if you are going to rule only in

17 this case for that signature to be disqualified?

18 Thank you.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thank you.

20             MR. O'BRIEN:  At least the Board can't

21 consider that evidence as pointed out by this lady on

22 the face of the petition you have before you.  That's

23 not with the material I had from counsel or from the

24 Board, the prior signature.  I think -- I suppose you
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1 could consider your own records, the petition itself.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  You're suggesting if

3 we look at the signature prior to the signature in

4 question, then it's the same last name, the same

5 address, that constitutes a legal marriage?  That's

6 very liberal minded of you, Mr. Prosecutor.

7             MR. O'BRIEN:  No.  I think it may not

8 constitute evidence of a marriage, but it constitutes

9 evidence that the Board can consider.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  At least we can assume that

11 her husband believes her last name is Hirrell.

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I would move we take the

13 matter off the table.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  That's a good idea.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Second?  Is there a

16 second?

17             MEMBER HAAS:  I'll second it.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor?

19 We will take that one.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I think the motion

21 pending is to uphold the protest with Mr. Preisse so

22 moving and my second; is that correct?

23             MR. ANDERSON:  That is correct.

24             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Say that again so we
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1 can all understand.  I wasn't following that.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  The suggestion from

3 Mr. Preisse and me was that we uphold the protest.

4 That's the motion.

5             MR. ANDERSON:  That was the motion that

6 was seconded.

7             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Okay.  Was that a

8 clear understanding of that?

9             MEMBER HAAS:  That was not my

10 understanding.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Well, should I restate

12 it?

13             MEMBER HAAS:  Yeah.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  In the matter of

15 petition 0730, line 5 where we see a discrepancy

16 between what appears to be Chloe Beyer and Chloe

17 Hirrell, I would move to uphold the protest meaning

18 strike the signature because they are different, and

19 with the input reflected on the Supreme Court case of

20 not too many years ago, maybe I will leave it off the

21 commentary, the best way that was suggested by

22 Theodore Roosevelt to abolish bad law is to enforce

23 it strictly.

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I second the motion for
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1 the reasons described in the Rogers case.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  It was moved and

3 seconded.  We will do a roll-call vote.  This is to

4 uphold the signature of Chloe Beyer, uphold the

5 protest.

6             Kimberly Marinello.

7             MEMBER MARINELLO:  No.

8             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Greg Haas.

9             MEMBER HAAS:  Oppose.

10             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Doug Preisse.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Bradley Sinnott.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We have another tie

15 vote.

16             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Mr. Director, I

17 don't know if you have been keeping score along the

18 way, my tally has that we deemed -- we upheld the

19 protest on three signatures, we tied on two, and

20 denied the protest on the remainder.  By my count

21 being that Mr. Miller had 52 valid signatures,

22 upholding the protest on 3 would now take him to 49

23 good signatures.

24             MR. ANDERSON:  Does that include
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1 Mr. Miller's signature himself?

2             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  It does,

3 Mr. Anderson.

4             MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.

5             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That was one of

6 the three that the Board upheld the protest on to

7 deny acceptance of the signature.  That's my count

8 that I have.

9             MR. ANDERSON:  Wasn't there six?

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  No.  There were six.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Six with him or six

12 without Miller?

13             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I have the same count.

14             MEMBER HAAS:  I wasn't questioning

15 Mr. Miller's right to -- we had 14, I think, in the

16 original complaint signatures, and it was narrowed to

17 6.  Six is obviously a much more manageable number in

18 terms of tracking people down and all the things that

19 go into that.  There are also signatures that the

20 Board invalidated on the petition.

21             What is Mr. Miller's recourse in terms of

22 reexamining the signatures?  We told him he was on

23 the ballot, and now today obviously we have a number

24 falling short.  It seems like the question here is



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

52

1 does he have 50 valid signatures on this -- on his

2 petition or not?  The Board deemed that he did.  A

3 protest came in with 14 names.  In terms of tracking

4 people down and finding them, that's a pretty major

5 task.  There also may be signatures on the petition

6 that he -- he may want -- from the election process

7 the question here is do we have 50 signatures on the

8 petition or not.  Based on --

9             MR. ANDERSON:  No.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  -- you know, our word and

11 what we did in terms of confirming, he was on the

12 ballot until the protests, does he have any recourse

13 in terms of reexamining the petitions?

14             MR. ANDERSON:  I believe that his

15 remedies would lie with courts at this point.

16             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I believe we

17 actually need a motion by a member of the Board to

18 uphold the protest overall.

19             MR. ANDERSON:  And remove --

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  And remove

21 Mr. Miller on the basis of insufficient signatures as

22 a candidate for State Representative if counsel

23 believes that's in order.

24             MR. ANDERSON:  That is correct.
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1             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, the numbers are

2 what they are.  I move to uphold the protest and

3 remove the candidacy of Marco Miller from the ballot

4 as a candidate for the Ohio Senate 3rd Senate

5 District.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I'll second the

7 motion.

8             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Seconded.  You had a?

9             MEMBER HAAS:  Okay.  We are in agreement

10 that the number is 49 at this point, right?

11             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  That's correct.

12             MEMBER HAAS:  And if Mr. Miller is to

13 take any kind of action, the Board is right and we

14 are in agreement about the No. 49, okay.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I seconded the motion.

16             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The motion has been

17 moved and seconded to uphold the protest of Blackburn

18 so we will do a roll-call vote or is it unanimous?

19             Kimberly Marinello.

20             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.

21             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Greg Haas.

22             MEMBER HAAS:  Yes.

23             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Doug Preisse.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes.
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1             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Brad Sinnott.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.

3             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All right.  The motion

4 to oppose the protest stands.

5             The next item on the agenda would be the

6 Chad Monnin.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Moving on to

8 Chad, the matter of the 19th Ohio House District.

9             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  The protest was

10 filed by a Mr. Carl Michael Akers against the

11 candidacy of Chad Monnin.  I see Mr. Don Brey.  I

12 assume Mr. Brey is here on behalf of Mr. Akers; is

13 that correct?

14             MR. BREY:  Yes, I am, sir.

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Mr. Chairman.

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  State your name and

17 purpose for the record, please.

18             MR. BREY:  My name is Don Brey.  I am

19 with the Taft firm as well.  I am here on behalf of

20 the Protestor Mike Akers.

21             I have some handouts if -- although they

22 may duplicate what they have.  Since I already killed

23 the trees would it be permissible to hand them?

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Sure.
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1             MR. BREY:  As the Board noted in the last

2 protest, one of the fundamental requirements of

3 having a valid petition is having a sufficient number

4 of signatures that match signatures of record with

5 those on file with the Board of Elections.

6             This is a matter of statute, of case law,

7 and of records of the Ohio Secretary of State that if

8 the -- a sufficient number of signatures do not

9 match, then you can't have a valid candidacy.  And

10 Revised Code 3513.05 part of Mr. Monnin's petition

11 contained at least 25 valid signatures but there are

12 7 signatures that we believe do not match the

13 signatures on file with the -- with the Board of

14 Elections.

15             I understand you may already have a copy

16 of the list of these signatures so you can compare

17 them from your own records which is probably the best

18 way of doing that.  We also made copies of those as

19 best we could which are included at pages 2 and 3 of

20 my 3-1/2 page memo.  Hopefully it won't take too long

21 to go through it.

22             The first one, Courtney Hodges, just

23 looking at it it's clear these signatures are

24 different signatures.  They do not match and for that
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1 reason should be rejected.

2             The second -- Revised Code 3501.38(C)

3 requires each signer to place on the petition after

4 their name the date of signing and the location of

5 the voter's address and the signature on the part

6 petition.  Janet Lombardi reflected her address as

7 6889 Chiswick Court in New Albany which I understand

8 the signature on file at that address is the first of

9 the two signatures on the left there which clearly

10 does not match.  Now, there is another signature and

11 different address that's below that also included for

12 completeness.

13             The third signature, again, if you look

14 at the signature on the right which is the petition

15 signature and compare it with the signature on the

16 left which is that of the Board of Elections, the Ms

17 are very different.  There is -- the whole nature of

18 what this is looks quite different than the signature

19 on the right.

20             And the fourth signature of last, very

21 similarly you can see the big L or script on the

22 right which looks very different than anything on the

23 Board of Elections' records.

24             The fifth signature of Shane Moran, the
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1 Ss are very different and even in terms of the

2 existence of all the letters that are included in one

3 or not included in the other.

4             The sixth signature of Albert Campbell

5 looks very different than the signature on the Board

6 of Elections' website.  Granted the one on the Board

7 of Elections' website is difficult to read and one of

8 the requirements of signatures is that they be

9 legible enough so you can compare the two, and in

10 this case you simply can't.  It's not comparable.

11             And, lastly, the signature Peter Horvath

12 or what purports to be his on the right is scribbled

13 compared with -- they are both scribbled, but they

14 are different scribbles as you can see with the lines

15 in one that aren't in the other and vice versa.

16             In any event we believe that the

17 discrepancies between the signatures on the petition

18 and those on record with the Board of Elections were

19 sufficiently of import that the Board itself should

20 review them and make its judgment as to whether or

21 not these are valid signatures or not.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Questions for

23 Mr. Brey?

24             MEMBER HAAS:  Do you have a handwriting
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1 expert?

2             MR. BREY:  We did not have a handwriting

3 expert look at these.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Mr. Brey, has your

5 one-page brief been served or otherwise shared with

6 the candidate?

7             MR. BREY:  I shared it with the candidate

8 at the same time I shared it with members of this

9 Board.  It was not served prior to this hearing.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Very good.  Thank you.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Shall we go through

12 them?

13             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I think we need

14 to hear from the candidate.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I'm sorry.  Is the

16 candidate here representing himself, or has he got

17 one?

18             MR. MONNIN:  No, it's me.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Please tell us

20 your name and what your purpose is.

21             MR. MONNIN:  My name is Chad Monnin, my

22 address 4527 Northgate, New Albany, Ohio.  I am here

23 to represent myself against this protest regarding

24 the validity of the signatures as just presented.



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

59

1 Just like the very first attorney presented today,

2 his protest was valid because the protestor was a

3 member of the same party.  Unlike this protest that's

4 being levied against me the person stated, Mr. Akers,

5 in his protest that they are not affiliated with the

6 Libertarian Party.  And under Ohio Revised Code

7 3513.05 the person must be of the same party to

8 protest a candidate in the primary just as a

9 Republican cannot protest a Democrat in the Primary

10 Election.

11             There are two court cases, Dukowski

12 versus Brunner holding that a Republican cannot

13 protest a Democrat under 3513.05 because one must be

14 a member of the protested candidate's party.  The

15 second case is Barnow versus Winniker.  And the Ohio

16 Supreme Court reported that the Brown County Common

17 Pleas Court ruled that an unaffiliated elector could

18 not file a protest against a candidate in the local

19 primary because the protestor was not a member of

20 that party.  Though it was dismissed, the appeal, on

21 jurisdictional grounds, the Supreme Court observed

22 the unaffiliated elector's status as nonpartisan may

23 have precluded him from instituting a timely protest

24 anyway under 3513.05.
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1             So I would like to make the motion that

2 this protest be dismissed based on those grounds

3 initially before we get to the signatures.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I don't think you have

5 standing to make a motion for us.  But if that's

6 your --

7             MR. MONNIN:  Yeah, sorry.

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  If that's your

9 statement, you certainly make a strong suggestion.

10 We may have questions.  Is that your statement?

11             MR. MONNIN:  Correct.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Do we have --

13 I'm sorry.  Yeah.  Mr. Monnin cited at least a couple

14 sections of the code and cases.  I wonder if you

15 could -- do we have that?

16             MR. ANDERSON:  The Dukowski case actually

17 deals with a registered Republican, I believe,

18 challenging a petition of a Democratic primary

19 candidate.  Clearly not applicable here.  In this

20 instance what you have --

21             MEMBER HAAS:  Why is that?

22             MR. ANDERSON:  Because what you have here

23 is an independent voter who is eligible to vote in

24 the Libertarian primary in May.  And there is the
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1 election officials manual from the Secretary of

2 State's Office which -- which details how you are to

3 look at independent candidates and the ability to

4 lodge protests.  The election officials manual

5 dates -- pardon me, the election officials manual

6 states that "for purposes of protesting a candidacy

7 for party nomination, any elector is considered a

8 member of the candidate's political party if the

9 elector voted only in that party's primaries in the

10 current and last two calendar years or did not vote

11 in any other party's primary in the current year in

12 the last two calendar years."

13             I believe staff has confirmed that the

14 protestor in this case has remained an independent,

15 not voted in any party's primary, and as such, he

16 would be eligible to vote in the Libertarian primary

17 in -- in May.  Given the guide -- or given the

18 election officials manual we are not comfortable

19 advising you to disregard what the Secretary of

20 State's Office has issued in that manual.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What was the Brown

22 County situation/case you mentioned, Chad?

23             MR. ANDERSON:  I can address that issue

24 as well, if you would like.
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1             MR. MONNIN:  Well, a person that is

2 unaffiliated may indeed circulate a petition, or they

3 may sign one, but they can't initiate a protest, even

4 though that this person could vote in the Libertarian

5 Primary.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  That, you are saying,

7 is the Brown County case.  Can we ask our counsel to

8 illuminate us on that?

9             MR. ANDERSON:  The Supreme Court actually

10 did not -- specifically did not rule on that issue.

11 The Brown County -- the Common Pleas Court was

12 overturned on other grounds, and while the court did

13 note that that was part of the Common Pleas Court

14 decision, the court specifically did not rule on that

15 particular issue in that case nor has it ruled on

16 that particular issue in any subsequent case.

17             MR. MONNIN:  But this gentleman could

18 vote in the Republican primary.  The point is he is

19 not a member of a Libertarian Party right now and,

20 therefore, should not be able to levy a protest

21 against another Libertarian.  He is not currently --

22 Ohio chooses its party members by who votes in

23 that -- who votes in the primary and who doesn't.  He

24 is not in the Ohio voter database as a Libertarian
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1 nor is he on record as a party voting that way.  And

2 no matter what the handbook says for the Board of

3 Elections the Ohio Revised Code does clearly state

4 that this member must be a member of the same party

5 for the protest.

6             MR. ANDERSON:  I stand with my previous

7 statement.

8             MEMBER HAAS:  But no.  I didn't hear you

9 talk about Revised Code.

10             MR. ANDERSON:  Well, the Secretary of

11 State has an interpretation of the Revised Code.  The

12 Revised Code certainly raises a question as to

13 whether or not that -- that argument is allowable.

14 However, in the absence of any defining case law, we

15 are not comfortable telling you to do something that

16 is different than what's contained in the election

17 officials manual.  The election officials manual

18 actually can be read sympathetically to the language

19 in the Revised Code.

20             MR. MONNIN:  If I could submit, the

21 recommend -- the Board of Elections handbook has the

22 phrase "or," and then it goes into the unaffiliated

23 nature.  However, the Ohio Revised Code does not say

24 "or."  It says "must be a member of that same party
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1 when the protestor filed the protest."  I'm saying

2 that there is no standing here by Mr. Akers to levy

3 the protest.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I wonder if we could

5 move on and take a look at the signatures.

6             MR. MONNIN:  Okay.

7             MEMBER HAAS:  Well, I guess I would like

8 to make a motion on the standing issue, and I think

9 based on what I've heard from both the witness and

10 from counsel, the Revised Code states that a person

11 must be a member of that party.  And so I would like

12 to make a motion that the complainant does not have

13 standing.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is that -- is that

15 motion in order when we haven't examined the entirety

16 of the question before us?

17             MEMBER HAAS:  It's the initial question

18 whether the person's protest is -- has merit, so it

19 has to be the first question.

20             MR. ANDERSON:  It's a valid motion.

21             MR. O'BRIEN:  Whether you take the steps

22 to look at those signatures, if he doesn't have

23 standing, there is no reason to go through it.

24             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second to
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1 the motion?

2             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I'm not sure -- go

4 ahead.  We can have discussion after.

5             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Now, discussion.  I'm

6 sorry.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So I wasn't clear on

8 Greg's line of questioning.  He's pointing to the

9 Code.  Refresh me right here.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  I heard from both the

11 witness and counsel the Ohio Revised Code states that

12 a -- a petitioner must be a member of that party, and

13 I heard that from both of them.

14             MR. ANDERSON:  Not quite, Mr. Haas.  The

15 Secretary of State's Office is interpreting the

16 language in the Code to say that --

17             MEMBER HAAS:  I am asking you about Code.

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Again, if you were

19 about to read --

20             MR. ANDERSON:  I think my -- my answer is

21 that the Secretary of State's Office has issued the

22 election officials manual giving their position

23 vis-a-vis how the Code should be read, and I'm not

24 comfortable at this point telling you to do something
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1 that contravenes the Secretary of State's election

2 officials manual.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  But you are representing

4 something that contravenes the Ohio Revised Code.

5             MR. ANDERSON:  No, because you can read

6 the Secretary of State's position sympathetically to

7 language in the Revised Code.  It's not an either/or

8 proposition, in other words, Mr. Haas.

9             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  You are saying the

10 code is not crystal clear.

11             MR. ANDERSON:  That is correct.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  And the Secretary of

13 State's manual is the Secretary of State's

14 interpretation of that section.

15             MR. ANDERSON:  That is correct,

16 Mr. Preisse.

17             MEMBER HAAS:  I think we can all be in

18 agreement what part of is is.  In this case what part

19 of must is must is pretty definitive.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I'm not sure where

21 must came in there.

22             MEMBER HAAS:  I think there is -- there

23 is a line -- there is a reference point wherein the

24 Revised Code refers to the person must be a member of
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1 the political party.

2             MR. MONNIN:  That's exactly what 3513 --

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Must be a member of

4 the political party and membership in the party is --

5             MR. MONNIN:  Ohio determines its members

6 by primaries, previous primaries.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Voting in a primary

8 and then there is -- it seems to me there is all

9 sorts of situations too, whether it's state of mind,

10 whatever somebody does when they are 18 years old

11 never changes.  You mentioned, Chad, I think in your

12 comments in -- in the -- the gentleman protesting, he

13 said he is not a member of a party?

14             MR. MONNIN:  He said he is unaffiliated

15 with the party.  He said he is an unaffiliated

16 member, so he is not -- he is not a Republican --

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Do we have that in

18 front of us?

19             MR. MONNIN:  According to the voters'

20 rolls and he is not in the Ohio voter database as a

21 Republican, Democrat, or Libertarian.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is that part of the

23 exhibit?  Where is that?

24             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  It's on the back
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1 of -- on our exhibit.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Our exhibit.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Mr. Chairman, the

4 first page.  It's the actual protest that was filed

5 by Mr. Akers.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  "I am not affiliated

7 with any political party, and, therefore, eligible to

8 vote in the Libertarian."

9             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well --

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Please do.

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  -- I have a couple of

12 questions for the staff about the state of the record

13 as to this Mr. Akers as the protestor.  Has he voted

14 in the Libertarian primary in the current or last two

15 calendar years?  He has not, correct?

16             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  He has not.

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  He did not vote in any

18 other party's primary in the current year and last

19 two calendar years, correct?

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That is correct.

21             MR. ANDERSON:  Has there been a

22 Libertarian primary that this gentleman could have

23 voted in in that time period?

24             MEMBER HAAS:  There was a Presidential
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1 race.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Was there a Libertarian

3 party in 2012?

4             MR. ANDERSON:  I don't think there was he

5 would have been eligible to vote for.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  Well, whether there was or

7 not he states that he is not -- he is not a

8 Libertarian.

9             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Well, no.  I take

10 issue with that because he clearly does not state he

11 is not Libertarian.  He is not --

12             MEMBER HAAS:  Affiliated with any

13 political party.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Not affiliated with

15 any political party.

16             MEMBER HAAS:  A party is a party.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  He says "I am not

18 affiliated with any political party."  My read of

19 that he means he is not --

20             MEMBER HAAS:  He is not a Libertarian.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  No, that's not my

22 reading.  I will interpret my reading for me.  It

23 means -- the way I read this it means I'm not

24 registered as a -- in any of the primaries as a
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1 Libertarian.  That's what I read in it so.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  It seems to me if this

3 is going to turn on whether we abide by the

4 instruction from the Secretary of State in the

5 election officials manual for Ohio County Board of

6 Elections or not, I don't know that any additional

7 discussion would be enlightening.  Is there a motion?

8             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  There is currently a

9 motion and it's been seconded to not uphold the

10 protest of Mr. Monnin.

11             MEMBER HAAS:  Based on the standing.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Based on the standing.

13 Do you want to do a roll-call vote on that?

14             Kimberly Marinello.

15             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.

16             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Greg Haas.

17             MEMBER HAAS:  I must vote yes.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Doug Preisse.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  No.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Bradley Sinnott.

21             MEMBER SINNOTT:  No.

22             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  So that needs to go to

23 the Secretary of State.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I guess we should
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1 continue the discussion.

2             MR. ANDERSON:  No.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  Now, we should take a look

4 at the signatures.

5             MR. ANDERSON:  No, because you've got a

6 2-2 vote on whether you can proceed with the protest

7 so it's going to have to go to the Secretary of

8 State's Office to break that particular tie.  And

9 then if the Secretary believes that the protest

10 should move forward, it would be remanded back here

11 and go through the signatures.

12             MEMBER HAAS:  Preliminary call on

13 signatures?

14             MR. ANDERSON:  No, no.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  We are at a tie

16 vote, and it will be submitted to the Secretary of

17 State.  Thank you for being here.  And thank you,

18 Don.

19             MR. MONNIN:  Okay.  Thank you.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The next item on the

21 agenda is the protest filed on Kevin Bacon's Senate

22 seat.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

24             MR. SWISHER:  Good afternoon.  I'm Zach
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1 Swisher.  I'm an attorney in Columbus, my address 2

2 Miranova Place, Columbus, Ohio.  I am here

3 representing Mr. Jeffrey Williams.

4             Given I guess the Board's discussion on

5 the underlying, I guess, legality of the petition

6 before you get to the signatures, we would, I guess,

7 acknowledge the petition that was filed by

8 Mr. Williams was sent on February 27 of 2014.  My

9 review of the Ohio Revised Code states that the

10 petition needed to be filed by February 21, 2014.  I

11 had a conversation with Mr. Williams.  I have just

12 been a recent retention by him.

13             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It was what?

14             MR. SWISHER:  He just retained me

15 recently.  He acknowledged that the petition was

16 filed outside of the timeframe needed to file.  He

17 got notice that this petition remained on the Board's

18 agenda for purposes of today.  He asked that I come

19 before the Board, explain that although he did file

20 outside of the timeframe, he still asked that the

21 Board, if it's in your discretion to do so, review

22 the material that I would be providing to you today

23 which are signatures of Mr. Bacon.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Mr. Prosecutor,
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1 is it within our discretion --

2             MR. ANDERSON:  It is not.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  -- as counsel

4 suggested to consider this?

5             MR. ANDERSON:  It is not.  The statute --

6 the statute is very clear as to when protests must be

7 filed.  It's 74 days before the day -- the date of

8 the primary.  This protest was filed outside of that

9 timeframe so, therefore, the Board does not have

10 statutory authority to entertain the protest.

11             MEMBER HAAS:  Entertain the protest, all

12 right.  Once a Board becomes aware of a potential

13 problem, does the Board have a responsibility to look

14 into a potential problem?

15             MR. ANDERSON:  If the Board sua sponte

16 wants to look at -- the majority of the Board sua

17 sponte wants to look at a particular issue, it

18 certainly would have discretion to do that within the

19 restrictions contained in the Revised Code related to

20 ballot preparation.

21             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Do we have an

22 obligation to act on things that come before us?

23             MEMBER HAAS:  So, I mean, I certainly

24 understand that the Board does not have the authority
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1 to specifically act on a protest that comes in late.

2 However, separate from the protest the Board has an

3 obligation when a problem has been brought to its

4 attention to look into it; is that a fair statement?

5             MR. ANDERSON:  That's not a legal issue.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  Well, let's put it this

7 way, if a member of the Board raises a question about

8 something that we previously acted on, then do we

9 have the authority to discuss and take action on it

10 even though we are outside the protest period?

11             MR. ANDERSON:  If a majority of the Board

12 determines that an illegality or irregularity has

13 taken place, it would have, subject to the

14 prescriptions in the Revised Code relative to the

15 ballot preparation, would have the ability to take

16 those issues up.

17             MR. SWISHER:  With that in mind, may I

18 approach?

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah.

20             MR. SWISHER:  I apologize.  I only

21 have --

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What are you handing

23 us?

24             MR. SWISHER:  The first document that is
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1 there is Mr. Bacon's declaration of candidacy.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I am not sure we got

3 to the point.

4             MR. SWISHER:  I apologize.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is there a motion?  Is

6 there a motion?

7             MR. ANDERSON:  No motion.

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I'm concerned that my

9 colleague to my left is concerned that the Board and

10 its staff may not have examined or considered

11 material in some fashion to his satisfaction and

12 perhaps to ours if we look at it in retrospect.  So,

13 therefore, I would suggest -- I would like to suggest

14 that the staff take this particular issue and a

15 sampling of other matters and review it at such time

16 as is convenient so that we can assure that our

17 procedures and policies are in place for proper

18 review.

19             And, I mean, this is not the only issue

20 that's come before us.  The other protests have

21 suggested that -- we will never be able to account

22 for human error and squiggly changing signatures and

23 procedures here and changing election law that

24 happens with every year.  But I'm -- this is in the
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1 form of a motion, I think I will.  Given the

2 confusion today -- well, I am not sure it's a motion,

3 no.  But I am requesting that the Board -- that

4 rather that the staff get back to us with a

5 suggestion as to how we can improve those kinds of

6 issues that have been raised in the case of the

7 Senate District before us now and the previous

8 filings and protests so we may best assure the public

9 we are continuing to improve and tighten our

10 procedures.  I'm not sure that helps.

11             MEMBER HAAS:  No, it didn't.  I think

12 there is probably an agreement here in terms of the

13 timing of the filing.  I think we have properly -- I

14 am assuming that agreement, that filing itself, is

15 too late and can't be heard.  But separate from the

16 filing, as a Board member, I see a couple of issues

17 like right here in the signatures, and at that point,

18 you know, I think we do have an obligation and I

19 would like to hear from staff and counsel and I think

20 counsel did say if we have a majority vote, we can

21 take up an issue.  And so I guess, first, I would

22 make a motion to reject the appeal based on the fact

23 that it came too late.

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Second.
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1             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The motion on the

2 floor to object -- to reject the protest as a

3 protest.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  We are denying the

5 protest.

6             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  To deny the protest

7 filed by Mr. Williams --

8             MEMBER HAAS:  Yes.

9             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  -- Jeffrey Williams,

10 as being untimely.  Seconded by Bradley Sinnott.

11             All those in favor.  Motion carries.

12             MR. SWISHER:  Thank you.

13             MEMBER HAAS:  Having respond -- having

14 been made aware -- and at this point we do not have

15 obviously an obligation to hear a protest that is

16 untimely.  We have -- actually as we've acted, we've

17 thrown it out.  But when we do become aware of

18 something that is -- clearly looks like an issue and

19 particularly in a time when voters have been thrown

20 off voting rolls, while we are demanding greater

21 accountability on the part of voters as we have gone

22 to a number of signatures here, when we have an

23 elected official candidate who we see very different

24 signatures on petitions, I think -- I think it rises



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

78

1 to the level of we have to ask a question about it.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Well stated.  Okay.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  I make a motion that we

4 take a look at -- at these signatures and why they

5 are so completely different.

6             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  So repeat the motion.

7             MEMBER HAAS:  The motion is that we take

8 a look particularly at the item regarding Mr. Bacon's

9 signature and the significant difference between the

10 signature on file and the part petition.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I wonder --

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Mr. Haas, what would

13 take a look at mean in this context?

14             MEMBER HAAS:  Well, I mean, I think

15 certainly a discussion today at minimum and then

16 potential vote on whether -- whether this needs to be

17 looked at by the Prosecutor or Secretary of State.

18             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I don't think there is

19 a protest in front of us now.

20             MEMBER HAAS:  There is not.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I would like to concur

22 and maybe even -- although I am not going in the

23 direction you are going relative to asking the

24 Prosecutor or Secretary of State to look at this, but
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1 I would suggest that I would like to strengthen your

2 suggestion and motion, friendly amendment, if it's

3 accepted as such, to add everything we've looked at

4 today as I mentioned before under the -- under kind

5 of the umbrella of actions the Board staff took as it

6 relates to approving petitions, accepting petitions,

7 once again, we heard evidence here of Board staff

8 giving advice which may or may not have been helpful,

9 hurtful, or erroneous and -- and the confirming or

10 denying the signatures.

11             And I would ask that the Board and

12 staff -- the Board staff get back to us with an

13 analysis and recommendations of all the -- of these

14 matters including the matter you just brought to us.

15 I don't think that that's a matter in my opinion that

16 arises asking the Secretary of State or the

17 Prosecutor to do our job for us.

18             MEMBER HAAS:  No.  I would agree with

19 that.  I guess my point was at least opening the

20 discussion and us beginning that because that's --

21 those are good points that we laid out so I think

22 that we -- we ask staff to digest the concerns that's

23 been raised and that if we concur to that, then I

24 think we can go from there.



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

80

1             MEMBER SINNOTT:  So you're thinking about

2 a review of the staff's procedures or making

3 recommendations about which signatures are valid?

4             MEMBER HAAS:  Well, I think that's part

5 of what I think Doug said, but he said it in addition

6 to, you know, my specific, you know, concern about

7 these two signatures that we have before us in the

8 petition.

9             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We may need that

10 motion kind of restated.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yeah, I added a lot of

12 verbiage too.

13             MEMBER HAAS:  Why don't you take a knock

14 at it.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I would like to

16 memorialize our opinion here by a vote for which I

17 would suggest I would move that the Board direct our

18 staff to take a serious look at our policies,

19 procedures, specifically as it relates to accepting

20 petitions, reviewing of petitions, specifically the

21 examination of signatures, both of -- how petitions

22 are filled out and by the -- by the candidates and

23 circulators and the signatures of the signers and how

24 it is that we are dealing with these issues as it
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1 relates to either of the cases before us today

2 including the 3rd Senate District and the House

3 District.  So moved.

4             MEMBER HAAS:  Second.

5             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We may need the court

6 reporter to spell it out for us.  It's been moved and

7 seconded, and you will provide us with that, make

8 sure that staff will -- staff understands what you

9 guys want.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I vote for that motion

11 too.  I vote for that motion too.  We haven't voted

12 yet.

13             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  You haven't approved.

14 It has been properly moved and seconded.  All those

15 in favor.

16             Dana and I will get on that ASAP, have

17 something at our next meeting.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The next item on

19 the -- next item on the agenda would be the J -- the

20 Perry Township protest, Perry Township.

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I believe we have

22 counsel here today representing the protestors.  If

23 counsel for the protestors would come forward first

24 and present their evidence, I think that would be in
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1 order, Mr. Chairman.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Welcome.

3 Please state your name and your purpose.

4             MR. HALE:  May it please the Board,

5 Chairman Preisse, Ms. Marinello, Mr. Haas, and

6 Mr. Sinnott, my name is Harland Hale.  I represent

7 the protestors in this matter along with Gordon

8 Shuler who is seated in the first chair to my left.

9             Before I go into any detail regarding

10 this matter, I would respectfully request that before

11 the Township speaks that also Mr. Shuler be allowed

12 to address this Board on a separate legal matter

13 since we have broken it down, but more importantly I

14 will be brief.  I would also respectfully reserve or

15 request that I be given the opportunity to speak in

16 reply since we have the burden of proof in response

17 to the Township's lawyer's comments.

18             We represent three protestors, the first

19 of which is Nicholas Savko & Sons, the second of

20 which is Lincoln Construction, and the third of which

21 is an individual protestor William Lehner.  I should

22 indicate that the Chairman of the Board of Savko

23 would have been here.  Unfortunately he had business

24 out of town and simply could not be here.  The owner
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1 and CEO of Lincoln Construction is a gentleman by the

2 name of Kurt Schmitt.  Kurt Schmitt along with their

3 general counsel Don Leech was here for a couple of

4 hours and unfortunately had a commitment wherein they

5 had to leave.  But more equally important Bill Lehner

6 is here seated to my left here in the white sweater.

7             What we have for your consideration here

8 is a minor matter in the relative scheme of things of

9 the size of Franklin County.  I don't know if Perry

10 Township is geographically the smallest political

11 subdivision in Franklin County, but I can assure you

12 if it is not the smallest, it would still make a

13 podium finish.

14             Perry Township survives, and I think

15 that's the proper word, by real estate property

16 taxes.  I have been a resident of Perry Township just

17 short of 30 years.  In the 30 years that I have been

18 a resident of the unincorporated portion of Perry

19 Township, I don't think there has been a matter that

20 has been brought before the Township of equal

21 importance as this income tax matter is.

22             I want to give you a little bit of

23 background so that you understand why we're here.  I

24 found out about this on January 10 when I got a



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

84

1 frantic phone call from a business owner in the

2 Township at 4 p.m. on Friday afternoon indicating

3 that the Township Trustees were going to consider

4 putting on the ballot the JEDZ proposal which would

5 by its nature include a 2-1/2 percent income tax on

6 all payrolls designated in the zone which includes 51

7 parcels and also includes among others Savko and

8 Lincoln.

9             I had not known about this until then;

10 and, in fact, over that weekend I called

11 approximately 40 neighbors and not one of the 40 had

12 any idea that this was going on either.  So I

13 attended the meeting on Monday, January 13, of the

14 Trustees, and it was -- it became apparent to me or

15 it became obvious to me that they were having a

16 public hearing unbeknownst to anyone on that day on

17 this very matter and intended to go forward

18 immediately after the public hearing and vote on the

19 thing.

20             The public hearing lasted about an hour.

21 At the request of Savko, Lincoln, and others, I

22 requested the Board to simply continue it or table it

23 for a week or two so that at least some of the

24 employers of the township who were going to be
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1 subjected to this owner's tax take a look at what it

2 is because they knew nothing about it.

3             I should also introduce LEPD Firearms

4 Range and Training Facility which is owned by Phil

5 Delbet and his son Eric.  They are the two gentleman

6 in the last row here.  They own the business that is

7 just north of Lincoln Construction.  They also have

8 been designated as 1 of the 51 parcels in the JEDZ

9 and, therefore, will be subject to this owner's

10 income tax.

11             To tell you a little more about it, it

12 appears quite frankly that this is nothing more than

13 a money grab.  Perry Township is so small it is fully

14 developed.  I can honestly tell you I know of no

15 parcels, no acreage, no land that is available for

16 any commercial or industrial development.  Everything

17 that's in Perry Township has got a house, a business,

18 or something on it with the exception of some public

19 lands by way of example.

20             For whatever reason they have included in

21 this JEDZ geographical area the retention pond on

22 Billingsley Road.  Although it's not directly

23 pertinent to the issue that we are here on I would

24 simply ask what tax revenue does the Township
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1 Trustees intend to get from a city retention pond?

2             To get to the matter at hand, we are

3 alleging multiple violations of the Ohio Sunshine

4 Law.  This Board has an obligation and indeed a duty

5 to review all election matters to ensure that they

6 were properly prepared and brought before this Board

7 to make it ballottable.

8             In this particular case there were

9 repeated violations of the Ohio Sunshine Law which

10 requires it to be invalidated.  It was invalid when

11 it was enacted on January 13, 2014, it was invalid

12 when it was filed with this Board, and it was invalid

13 when this Board certified it to the ballot.

14             Let me run through the Sunshine Law

15 quickly, and then I'll turn it over to Mr. Shuler if

16 he has comments.  I attached -- I hope I attached a

17 copy of the Sunshine Law to the memorandums that we

18 submitted, but if you could look at section C which

19 is on page 2 of the exhibit we submitted, you will

20 see in the second sentence -- let me make sure I have

21 got it in the right section here.  I apologize, it's

22 (H).

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is it the brief of the

24 protestors?  I see references to the Sunshine Law
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1 here.

2             MR. HALE:  Yeah.  It's subsection (H)

3 which I think is on page 5.  Let me read if for you.

4 In the second sentence it provides in relevant part,

5 a resolution, which is what this is, it was a

6 resolution adopted in an open meeting that results

7 from deliberations in a meeting not open to the

8 public is invalid.  It goes on to say unless it's in

9 one of the exceptions.  There is an exception in this

10 case in which the Township tries to dovetail

11 unsuccessfully into -- that's contained in (G)(8) on

12 page -- it would be page 5 starting about two-thirds

13 of the way down the page.  It provides in relevant

14 part that you can go into executive session to

15 consider certain matters including an operating JEDZ

16 which we do not have here.

17             We have absolutely nothing here other

18 than a Township thinking about creating one with

19 another -- where you have to pair with another

20 municipality which in this case they were going to

21 pair with Worthington, but at the time the Township

22 went into the multiple executive sessions there was

23 no JEDZ in place.  There was no contract in place.

24 There was nothing in place that allowed them to
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1 utilize this exception which must be strictly

2 construed -- construed as you know against allowing

3 executive sessions.  It provides confidential

4 information relating to marketing plans, specific

5 business strategies, production techniques, trade

6 secrets, or financial statements of an applicant for

7 economic development assistance.  Obviously that

8 doesn't qualify.

9             There was not even an entity to address.

10 You can't get economic development from a JEDZ that

11 doesn't exist and is unfunded so that can't apply

12 factually.  It just can't do it.

13             The second clause there says negotiations

14 with other subdivisions respectfully requests for

15 economic development assistance providing that both

16 the following apply:  First and foremost, there could

17 not have been as statutorily required a request for

18 economic development assistance because, again, there

19 is no entity, no funding, no anything to even submit

20 the economic development assistance.  Simply didn't

21 exist at that time.  So that doesn't qualify as well.

22             That as a matter of law violates the Ohio

23 Sunshine Law.  You need not go to subsection 1 or

24 subsection 2 because they cannot factually or legally
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1 qualify under (G) period.

2             Now, moving on to (G)(1) it provides in

3 the first part that it's directly related to a

4 request for economic development assistance that is

5 administered or provided under Chapter 17 -- 715

6 which is the relevant provision.  Again, there is no

7 request for economic development assistance.  There

8 could be no request for economic development

9 assistance because there is no entity created to even

10 apply to get assistance.

11             The second clause of 1 provides -- or

12 that involves public infrastructure improvements or

13 the extension of utility services that are directly

14 related to an economic development project.  That

15 fails as well for so many reasons.  First of all,

16 there is no public infrastructure improvements.

17 Second, there is no extension of utility services.

18 And, finally, there is nothing relating directly to

19 any economic development project since there is none

20 to even have.  You can't create that from which is

21 not there.  So it doesn't apply.

22             So, again, all four tenants violate the

23 Sunshine Law, and they have to combine not only with

24 the preamble in 8 but also 1 and 2.
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1             Let's move on to 2.  The unanimous quorum

2 of the public body by roll-call that the executive

3 session is necessary to protect the interests of the

4 applicant or the possible investment -- investment or

5 expenditure of public funds to be made in connection

6 with the economic development project.  Again, for

7 similar reasons that I've set forth below there was

8 no JEDZ in place to even apply to anything.  There

9 was no possible way that they could discuss

10 investments that don't exist.  There is no possible

11 way that they could discuss the expenditure of public

12 funds when, in fact, there are no public funds

13 existing.  So that cannot apply.

14             The final one is just above that, the

15 executive session, it's at the bottom of page 5, the

16 executive session is necessary to protect the

17 interests of the applicant.  There is no applicant.

18 It doesn't apply as a matter of law.  There is nobody

19 applying for anything because nothing yet exists.

20 There is absolutely nothing in (G)(8) where you can

21 attempt no matter how you twist it, no matter how you

22 turn it, no matter how you try to make it dovetail

23 into (G)(1) or (2), it doesn't fit.  It can't fit as

24 a matter of law.
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1             More importantly or equally important

2 section A requires that the Ohio Sunshine Act be

3 strictly construed in favor of open meetings.  By way

4 of example, if I could use this example, if, in fact,

5 this matter was a 50/50 tie, which obviously it's

6 not, then it -- the winner would go to the one that

7 was objecting to the executive session and in this

8 case the protestors.  We don't have a tie here.

9 Clearly -- there is a clear and unequivocal violation

10 of the Ohio Sunshine Law repeatedly; and, therefore,

11 it was illegal when it got here.  It was unauthorized

12 by law when it got here.  It was illegal when it was

13 certified and by law when it got here.

14             I want to just for the record mention a

15 couple of other things.  I also want to bring to the

16 attention of the Board two provisions of the Revised

17 Code that are pertinent to this discussion.  The

18 first one is 1.11 of the Ohio Revised Code.  It

19 requires all remedial laws and other proceedings

20 shall be liberally construed in order to promote

21 their object and assist the parties in obtaining

22 justice.

23             In this case there's no question that the

24 Sunshine Law is legislation requiring open meetings.



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

92

1 There is no question that as a matter of law, it has

2 to be construed against the Township and the actions

3 they took.

4             In addition, I've attached 1.42 which

5 indicates that words shall be read in context and

6 construed according to the rules of grammar and

7 common usage.  You can't superimpose on the Sunshine

8 Law some kind of implication that when you're having

9 discussions about doing some kind of deal with

10 Worthington down the road and so forth that you can

11 utilize an executive session because it simply

12 doesn't permit it in the statute.  It requires and

13 clearly indicates that it's for an existing JEDZ

14 reviewing applicants for economic development.

15             There's an obvious reason between the

16 two.  On the one hand you're dealing with imposing an

17 incredibly onerous tax on a whole bunch of people who

18 have no connection with Perry Township except they

19 happen to be running a bulldozer in North Baltimore,

20 Ohio, on a project and are on payroll for Savko.

21 That's their only connection.  It's extremely onerous

22 under those circumstances.

23             And when I say that, we're not talking

24 about people of means.  We're talking about people
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1 making 14 to 18 dollars an hour.  We're talking about

2 people who are not now subject to any municipal

3 income tax.  They live out in the unincorporated --

4 out in other counties in unincorporated areas.  So it

5 subjects these folks to an extremely onerous tax;

6 and, therefore, I will suggest to you that it must be

7 strictly construed against the Trustees to make sure

8 it got validated here.  There is nothing here in this

9 statute that requires or allows the exception to come

10 into place.

11             But equally important (H) again provides,

12 and I want to emphasize this, if a resolution is

13 adopted in an open meeting as we have here that

14 resulted from deliberations in a meeting not open to

15 the public, it is invalid as a matter of law and

16 there's no exception to that.  That is precisely on

17 all fours what we have here.  That concludes my

18 remarks.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  We may have some

20 questions.

21             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I do.  Mr. Hale, when

22 your clients saw what they believed to be a violation

23 of the Sunshine Law, did they go to the Common Pleas

24 Court complaining of that and looking for the
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1 injunctive relief provided for by statute?

2             MR. HALE:  No, because the case law

3 suggests you have to come here first and exhaust your

4 administrative remedies before you can go to court.

5 And it's an election matter.  It's within this

6 jurisdiction of this Board to consider.

7             MEMBER SINNOTT:  What is that case that

8 you refer to?

9             MR. HALE:  I don't have it on top of me,

10 but I can assure you that we considered the

11 possibility of lawsuit in lieu of this protest, and

12 we all understood that we would be subjecting -- we

13 thought subjecting ourselves to a meritorious claim

14 failure to exhaust so we came here first.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any other questions

17 from the Board?  You suggested you have Mr. Shuler,

18 was it?

19             MR. HALE:  Mr. Shuler can briefly address

20 the Board.  I appreciate it.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

22             MR. HALE:  I appreciate your time.

23             MR. SHULER:  My name is Gordon Shuler,

24 145 East Rich Street.  I also represent the



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

95

1 protestors in this matter.  I am going to be very

2 brief because I have been taught that one must --

3 shouldn't anticipate the arguments of the other side

4 before we hear them.  And most of what I have to say

5 has to do with the question that Mr. Sinnott raised

6 and that is jurisdiction.

7             I can comment on that question and that

8 is in the Sunshine Law which discusses taking the

9 matter to the Common Pleas Court for injunction, it

10 simply states that it may be taken to the Common

11 Pleas Court.  There's no requirement that these

12 protestors do that.  That may be a course of action

13 that could be followed later but we don't see any

14 reason to pursue an injunction when the matter should

15 not be on the ballot in the first place.

16             We believe that under Title 35 and

17 specifically 3501.11 which gives this Board broad

18 authority to determine that which should be placed on

19 the ballot provides this body with jurisdiction to

20 determine that this matter is invalid, illegal, and

21 should not be on the ballot.  Thank you.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any questions of

23 Mr. Shuler?

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Mr. Shuler, your review
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1 of the authority suggests to you it is the Franklin

2 County Board of Elections that ought to be

3 adjudicating whether the Perry Township Board of

4 Trustees has complied with the Sunshine Law?

5             MR. SHULER:  We believe this is one of

6 the forums where it can be raised, yes.  You

7 determine whether it goes on the ballot, and if it's

8 invalid when the resolution is passed, it should not

9 be put on the ballot.

10             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.

11             MR. SHULER:  Thank you.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Let's hear from

13 the other side.

14             MS. BRUNNER:  Good afternoon,

15 Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board.  My name is

16 Jennifer Brunner.  I also appear with co-counsel

17 Christine Martin and Peter Contreras seated here to

18 my right who represents Perry Township in response to

19 the protest filed in this matter.

20             I would direct the Board's attention to

21 the stipulations of the parties that we did file with

22 the Board on Friday, the 28th, and would respectfully

23 request they be made a party of the record of these

24 proceedings as well as the motion to dismiss on
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1 behalf of Perry Township so that in the event this

2 goes beyond today that they are included with the

3 court reporter's record of the proceedings today.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  All right.  Yes,

5 without objection, if that's sufficient for you.

6             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  And I've already

7 given a copy of those to the court reporter to

8 include in the transcript of this meeting.

9             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.  We appreciate

10 that.

11             Perry Township couched its brief in a

12 motion to dismiss the protest for the reason that we

13 think that the Board of Elections should first

14 consider its jurisdiction.  And looking at the

15 Sunshine Law which is Revised Code 121.22 this is a

16 statutory proceeding that ended up with a court

17 fashioning a remedy which also includes the awarding

18 of attorney's fees.  And we searched the statutes,

19 the case law in Ohio high and low to find any cases

20 whatsoever where a Board of Elections ruled an issue

21 that was submitted to it by a resolution of whether

22 it be a city or township or a county off of the

23 ballot because of a violation of the Sunshine Law,

24 and we found no reported case that would provide you
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1 with any guidance or any precedence that a board

2 could do that.

3             And the only thing we did find regarding

4 boards of elections and sunshine laws was when the

5 sunshine law was actually applied to the

6 deliberations of a board of elections outside of the

7 requirements of the sunshine law so we would -- we

8 would suggest to you at the outset that you examine

9 whether or not you have jurisdiction to proceed on

10 the basis of a protest.  And the sole basis of this

11 protest is that this should not go onto the ballot

12 because of a violation of the Sunshine Law.

13             If you decide that you have jurisdiction,

14 and we believe that it would be a problem for you to

15 do that, the next issue is to look at what actually

16 went forward, and in your stipulations you have

17 minutes of October 7, October 21, and November 18 of

18 the Perry Township Board of Trustees as well as the

19 resolutions that resulted from its meetings.  I

20 believe you also -- yeah, there is -- you have got

21 the resolutions that resulted in the adoption of the

22 Joint Economic Development Zone, and those

23 resolutions actually demonstrate to you that it was

24 adopted -- it was actually adopted.  It was -- it
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1 was -- sorry.  Let me start over again.

2             Looking at the minutes of November 18,

3 the Board essentially put the Township on notice that

4 there was a Joint Economic Development Zone Agreement

5 reached and that it would not formally adopt it for

6 30 days, that essentially it would be put on

7 public -- put available at the fiscal officer's

8 office so that members of the public would be able to

9 come in and actually review not only the Joint

10 Economic Development Zone contract but also the

11 Economic Development Plan that's required by statute

12 to be adopted between the Township and the City under

13 Revised Code Section 715.691.

14             So those were -- you've got the

15 stipulations of the parties.  You've got the 30 days'

16 notice that was provided, and then on January 13, the

17 Board adopted the Joint Economic Development Zone,

18 for short JEDZ, Agreement and then -- in one

19 resolution, and then by a second resolution, copies

20 of which are both attached to the stipulations of the

21 parties, they suggested ballot language and sending

22 it on to the Board of Elections with that.

23             Now, one of the difficulties in the

24 filings that the protestors have -- the protestors
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1 have made in this case is they are taking a look at

2 the Sunshine Law which is 121.22.  And, again, this

3 is going -- if you are going to even get into this

4 analysis as a Board -- because I think you have to

5 decide initially whether you have the ability to go

6 forward.  But when you -- when you get to Exhibit (H)

7 which Judge Hale cited, there's -- it says a

8 resolution, rule, or formal action of any kind is

9 invalid unless adopted in an open meeting of the

10 public body.  A resolution, rule, or formal action

11 adopted in an open meeting that results from

12 deliberations in a meeting not open to the public is

13 invalid unless the deliberations were for a purpose

14 specifically authorized in division (G) or (J) of

15 this section.

16             You were then referred to division (G),

17 specifically subsection (8) which is to consider

18 confidential information relating to a variety of

19 issues or to negotiations with other political

20 subdivisions representing requests for economic

21 development assistance provided that both of the

22 following provisions apply.

23             So to simplify -- we had to get all of

24 that into the record.  I apologize for the lengthy
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1 diatribe there but.  It wasn't really a diatribe; it

2 was just a recitation.  Specifically we're talking

3 about negotiations with other political subdivisions

4 so that's Perry Township and the City of Worthington

5 and then this is a request for economic development

6 assistance.  Counsel for the protestors argues that

7 there's -- there's nothing that has to do with the

8 JEDZ that regards economic development assistance.

9             And the documents, being the JEDZ

10 Contract and the Economic Development Plan, both

11 reference economic development assistance throughout

12 the contents.  For example, both parties which would

13 be the City and the Township, this addresses their

14 contributions to the JEDZ.

15             Additionally, that can be found in the

16 whereas clause, the third whereas clause, on page 1

17 of the contract.  We go further Section 2.3 called

18 "Contributions" talks about maintenance of Township

19 roads, snow removal, fire protection, police

20 protection, emergency medical services, and general

21 administration, and that the Township may furnish to

22 the JEDZ such service as allowed by law the Township

23 and Board deem appropriate and agree.

24             Further in Section 2.3 in the second
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1 paragraph, there's a discussion in the contract for

2 JEDZ about engaging activities to both compliment and

3 benefit economic development in the JEDZ.  And we can

4 go a bit further, and it won't be too much further,

5 there is the discussion in Section 3.2 on page 6 of

6 the agreement about the provision of services within

7 the JEDZ, and then within the Economic Development

8 Agreement itself there is specific language that

9 relates to the Township's comprehensive development

10 strategy including the extension of State Route 161

11 which includes the widening of the roadway to provide

12 improved service and access to existing and future

13 development.  And then a portion of the JEDZ revenues

14 will be dedicated to financing and continuing the

15 State Route 161 improvement process.

16             So here you have the requisite language

17 that's needed under Revised Code Section 121.22(G)(8)

18 which is also in subdivision (1) regarding economic

19 development assistance under any provision in Chapter

20 715 which is the provision for the JEDZ.

21             You also had to have a unanimous quorum

22 of the public body determining, by a roll-call vote,

23 that the executive session was necessary to protect

24 the interests of the applicant, and you have that
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1 stipulated by the parties with the minutes of the

2 November 18 meeting.  And also you have that in the

3 actual resolution for January 13.

4             So it's -- we are having a difficult time

5 seeing where the arguments of the protestors are

6 going, and with all due respect, Judge Hale can make

7 very plaintive arguments that are substantive to

8 whether you vote for it or vote against it, but they

9 really don't apply to whether or not this Board

10 should simply allow the voters to vote on the issue.

11             I want to point out in the memorandum

12 contra that was filed to our motion for the motion to

13 dismiss the recitation on page 3 of the memorandum of

14 the protestors in response to the motion to dismiss

15 seems to misstate the provisions of subsection (G) of

16 the Sunshine Law.  So I think you've got to look at

17 where the ors and the ands are there but we -- we

18 frankly are somewhat mystified how the protestors

19 reach the interpretation that they are urging this

20 Board to make.

21             And so for the reasons that we have

22 stated in our motion to dismiss, first, that you

23 don't have jurisdiction to even consider it under the

24 Sunshine Law; second, that even if you started to
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1 take a look at that and complied with the Sunshine

2 Law; and, third, that most specifically regarding the

3 Joint Economic Development Zone, we were within the

4 rights and the ability to move into executive session

5 at the time we did and under the circumstances that

6 we did.

7             And those -- those facts and

8 circumstances have been stipulated to by the parties.

9 We see really no other alternative for this Board

10 than to deny the protest.

11             May I answer any questions?

12             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Ms. Brunner.

13             MS. BRUNNER:  Yes.

14             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Is it the Township's

15 position there is never a circumstance under which

16 this Board could examine the process by which a

17 resolution is adopted?

18             MS. BRUNNER:  No, because you certainly

19 could examine the process.  If, for instance, there

20 was a failure of notice or there was a failure to

21 adopt specifically according to the statute, for

22 instance, in 715.691 -- or actually, I'm sorry, it

23 was in the Sunshine Law section been -- well,

24 actually I think you would have to look in 715.691.
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1 It -- if you want to look at the situation of

2 let's -- let me try to draw a comparison.  If this

3 Board which I think has attempted in the past to look

4 within -- I should say without the confines of the

5 petition so, for instance, I -- up until about two

6 years ago I had never seen this Board of Elections

7 grant a protest based upon what was told by a

8 circulator to someone who signed a petition.  And

9 when this Board did that in the case of Terri Jamison

10 who was running for judge because there was some

11 issue about which petition she was circulating and

12 what she was telling the circ -- telling the signers,

13 the Board was found to have acted outside of its

14 authority by the Court of Appeals.

15             My sense is if you look at the 121.22 and

16 you look at the fact that this is something that a

17 court deals with, that a court fashions the remedies

18 for this, our position in -- is that it goes beyond

19 what this Board is empowered to do.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, even if the

21 Township concedes that there are times when this

22 Board ought to undertake enforcements of the Sunshine

23 Law, then I'm curious as to how we know this is not

24 such a case.
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1             MS. BRUNNER:  Oftentimes there are

2 specific steps that have to take place that are

3 evidenced by minutes, by resolutions, and if you find

4 a -- if you find an error or an omission in one of

5 those requisite documents that gets them to the Board

6 and to the ballot, that would be appropriate.  But

7 once you start going into -- start going into inside

8 into discussions that led to their reaching of what

9 on its face allows it to go forward to the Board,

10 that's where I think you are stepping into that

11 territory where the Board was corrected on what it

12 did on that candidate petition.

13             I don't know if you are following me or

14 not by the look on your face.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I'm trying.

16             MS. BRUNNER:  What I am trying to say is

17 you have requisite steps that get you -- that get a

18 township or municipality or a county from a

19 resolution to the ballot.  And those requisite steps,

20 if they show on their face that they have been met,

21 the Board does not have the authority to delve into

22 whether or not the votes, the procedures, the

23 discussions that took place to allow that resolution

24 or those minutes to be issued by that body were
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1 correct.

2             That doesn't mean that it would never be

3 addressed.  It means it's just not addressed at the

4 Board because the Board doesn't have the authority to

5 do it.  It would be addressed more appropriately by a

6 judge in Common Pleas Court or in Court of Appeals

7 who would literally be able to -- to weigh the

8 evidence and fashion a remedy.

9             The only remedy that exists under the

10 Sunshine Law is one that's fashioned by a court and

11 that's -- it speaks to it within that statute itself.

12 I just think this Board is really treading on thin if

13 not broken ice if it were to move in that direction.

14             MEMBER SINNOTT:  That last observation

15 suggests there are instances where the Board should

16 undertake to enforce 122.  That is, if we don't find

17 compliance with the statute, we ought to refuse to

18 put a matter on the ballot.

19             MS. BRUNNER:  The question though -- I

20 don't think that I was -- that's not what I was

21 saying.  If that came across that way, was definitely

22 not intended.  If you -- it's an evidentiary question

23 where it would require the testimony of witnesses,

24 and I would -- I would request that the -- I think
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1 that it may already be in the Board's records, but if

2 it's not, that the actual JEDZ Agreement and the

3 Economic Development Plan be made a part of these

4 proceedings because these are -- this is what the

5 voters are going to be voting on.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  What I understand from what

7 you said is that if it's not our -- certainly not our

8 place to investigate whether or not the Sunshine Law

9 was followed.  If there was concurrence it wasn't

10 followed, there was concurrence there was a

11 violation, then we have the authority then to act to

12 rule off it.  If there is not concurrence and there

13 is legitimate debate, then we don't have the

14 authority to rule off it.  Another body has got to

15 look at -- at that process.

16             MS. BRUNNER:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Haas,

17 that is precisely our point, that there is no

18 agreement that there was a violation of the Sunshine

19 Law and that the determination of whether or not

20 there was belongs in the court of law, not in a board

21 of elections because if they lose today, they can go

22 to Common Pleas Court seeking injunction, or they can

23 try to go in prohibition or mandamus, whatever they

24 decide is appropriate, and they can try to stop this
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1 Board from putting it on the ballot.  Clearly as

2 Mr. Hale said, as Judge Hale said, they brought it

3 here to exhaust their administrative remedies, and we

4 submit that you should resoundingly stamp a no on the

5 protest and let them go their merry way.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Okay.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any other questions or

8 any questions?  Any more questions for Ms. Brunner?

9             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

10 Members of the Board.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

12             MR. ANDERSON:  Did you want to move the

13 JEDZ and the -- I'm sorry.  What did you ask them to

14 put into the record?

15             MS. BRUNNER:  The Economic Development --

16 the JEDZ Contract and its development plan.  I

17 assume -- I'm sorry we did not have extra copies.  It

18 should be part of the resolution, but I want to be

19 sure.

20             MR. HALE:  It was included already in the

21 stipulations.

22             MS. BRUNNER:  I don't know that it was

23 actually attached to the resolution, to the

24 stipulations.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It seems to be.  It

2 should have been if it wasn't.

3             MS. BRUNNER:  So we include these --

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I will move to accept

5 it.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  Second.

7             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

8             MS. BRUNNER:  Exhibit D and Exhibit E,

9 the Joint Economic Development Zone Contract and the

10 Economic Development Plan.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What is the question

12 before us at the moment?

13             MEMBER HAAS:  I think Mr. Hale had a

14 point.

15             MR. HALE:  May I briefly address the

16 Board?

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Sure.

18             MR. HALE:  Saying brief and being a

19 lawyer might be an oxymoron.  I will be brief.

20             First of all, those documents have

21 utterly nothing to do with this case.  Those are

22 prospective documents that may go into effect years

23 down the road if this thing ever passes.  There is

24 nothing in those documents that have any application
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1 to this matter at all.

2             Secondly, saying that we have a right to

3 go to court is equally applicable to Perry Township.

4 If this Board invalidates as they are required to do

5 as a matter of law, they can go tomorrow morning and

6 seek a prohibition action like we can seek -- or

7 mandamus action just like we can seek a prohibition

8 action.  So there is nothing on either side.  Either

9 person can go to court tomorrow depending on what

10 this Board decides.

11             Let me simply say this, to sit here and

12 suggest that this Board can ignore multiple clear

13 violations of the Ohio Sunshine Law and allow a

14 resolution to go on this ballot is contrary to

15 everything this Board stands for.  This resolution

16 that was presented to you is clearly unlawful,

17 clearly unlawful.  There is no way you can get around

18 the fact there is no authority whatsoever to go into

19 an executive session to discuss any of this.

20             And to sit here and say you should ignore

21 it and let someone else deal with it with you being

22 up -- upholding fair and honest elections I just

23 can't -- I can't see it.  You have every right to

24 look at any petition, any resolution.
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1             This Board when I represented it 30 years

2 ago would routinely look beyond the four corners of

3 the petition into what occurred and when it got here.

4 As a matter of fact, in the first protest you heard

5 today you did that.  You had all this extraneous

6 evidence come in that these signatures were the

7 signatures and so forth, beyond the four corners of

8 the petition.

9             So in any event this Board has the

10 authority to invalidate any resolution that is

11 illegally brought to it, and this one was illegally

12 brought to it.

13             I would like Mr. Shuler, if he would

14 like, to make some comments.

15             MR. SHULER:  Once again, being in the

16 august body of Judge Hale and Judge Brunner, I am

17 just a lawyer.  This is not a petition.  It is not a

18 candidacy.  It is a resolution that came from the

19 Township Trustees.  This Board has the authority and

20 the obligation to determine whether a valid

21 resolution has come before them.  The attorneys for

22 Perry Township state that, sure, you can look at

23 715.691 and determine whether they complied with

24 that.
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1             If that's the case, you can certainly

2 look at 121.22 and determine whether they complied

3 with the open meetings law.  It's a pretty simple

4 concept.  We have a resolution that is invalid, and

5 this Board should not allow it to be placed on the

6 ballot.  Thank you.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think Brad has a

8 question.

9             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Mr. Shuler, are you

10 aware of any instance where a Board of Elections has

11 refused to place a matter on a ballot because it

12 found a violation of a Sunshine Law in the method in

13 which a government body --

14             MR. SHULER:  No.  And I say that because

15 oftentimes when I am in court, someone would say do

16 you have a case on that.  Sometimes we say no.  But

17 I've read the statute and that's what the law says.

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I appreciate your candor

19 and the interruption.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Ms. Brunner, could I

21 ask you a quick question?  Did you suggest in your

22 remarks that you and the opposing counsel agreed in

23 the stipulations that in some part of the agreement

24 that -- rather the proceedings of the executive
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1 session were in order?

2             MS. BRUNNER:  No, I did not suggest that.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I thought you

4 suggested in the stipulations they agreed --

5             MS. BRUNNER:  In the stipulations there's

6 agreement of the authenticity of the minutes and the

7 resolutions and that there is -- there is no argument

8 on the 30-day notice being -- being provided by the

9 Township of the JEDZ plan and the economic.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  In terms of

11 approaching the Board for ballot access.

12             MS. BRUNNER:  Correct.  So the steps that

13 had to be taken in the statute to be able to get them

14 from -- from adoption and resolution to this Board,

15 there's no disagreement that those steps were taken.

16 Their disagreement is in the way that the resolution

17 was adopted, that this Board should look into it and

18 decide that that wasn't right.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Any other

20 questions?

21             Okay.  What's -- do we have --

22             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We have a protest

23 before you from the -- again the Perry Township --

24 Mr. Chairman, you probably need to ask if there is
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1 any other witnesses to be called.

2             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Are there any other

3 witnesses?

4             Are there any other witnesses?  And Brad

5 has made a good suggestion.  We may wish to hear from

6 our counsel.

7             MR. ANDERSON:  I -- I think it's an

8 interesting and somewhat circular argument that's

9 being made but let me state this simply, the Board

10 does have jurisdiction to determine if there was a

11 violation of one of the requirements relevant to the

12 enactment of an issue that is to be put on the

13 ballot.

14             So, in other words, if you believe that

15 the protestor has demonstrated a clear violation of

16 the Sunshine Law, you have the ability to uphold the

17 protest and -- and take the issue off of the ballot.

18 If you do not believe that the protestor has

19 demonstrated a clear violation of the Sunshine Law,

20 you should deny the protest.  But either way you have

21 jurisdiction to make that determination.  Is that

22 clear enough?

23             MEMBER SINNOTT:  For the purposes of

24 allowing discussion I will move that the Board deny
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1 the protest.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

3             MEMBER MARINELLO:  I second it.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Discussion.  I'll

5 offer the reaction to counsel's comments being what I

6 heard and was able to absorb.  I don't believe that I

7 heard a clear description of a violation of the

8 Sunshine Law or the application procedure for this

9 Board to consider this issue valid or not.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  I would agree with that.  I

11 think I heard enough.  I understand why you may be

12 pursuing other steps.  I think I go back to when in

13 doubt, I think our job is to consider what another

14 government entity has said to us with a great deal of

15 boundary.  And, you know, I think that the obligation

16 clearly from our standpoint was very clear, there

17 needs to be an absolute smoking gun, needs to be

18 absolute clarity for us to tell another government

19 entity that they acted inappropriately and that seems

20 like that is -- that belongs -- that fight belongs in

21 another place.

22             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Okay.  So there is a

23 motion on the floor to deny the protest.  Do we need

24 a roll-call vote?  It has properly been seconded.
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1             All those in favor.  Motion carries.

2             The next item on the agenda is candidate

3 appeals.  The first item on is Zach Scott.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  It has been suggested

5 to me what nature was suggesting to me already, to

6 myself, that we take a 5-minute break or we will take

7 a 5-minute break.

8             MR. SHULER:  I want to make an extremely

9 minor correction.  The stipulations say there was a

10 resolution passed on November 18, 2014.  That was

11 back in 2013.  It's in paragraph 7 of the

12 stipulations, very minor.

13             MS. BRUNNER:  So agreed.

14             (Recess taken.)

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  We will now reconvene

16 the meeting, Mr. Chairman.

17             The next item on the agenda is the Zach

18 Scott appeal.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I'm sorry.  Please,

20 I'm sorry.  Sidebar.

21             MS. BRUNNER:  Good afternoon,

22 Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board of Elections.  My

23 name is Jennifer Brunner of Brunner Quinn.  Also with

24 me here today is Peter Contreras, another attorney in
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1 my offices.  And our client is Zach Scott who was --

2 his petition for Democratic State Central Committee

3 was ruled insufficient with an insufficient number of

4 signatures on February 18, 2014.

5             I have given you several exhibits, one of

6 which is the notice of appearance when I appeared at

7 the Board's meeting on February 18, notice of filing

8 of affidavits of Manasi Chatterji and Tara Patel

9 which is Exhibit 2 -- first Exhibit 1 -- Exhibit 3

10 being the actual petition which this petition

11 required five valid signatures, and Exhibit 4 being

12 something I came to the Board of Elections and

13 obtained from your records which is a copy of the

14 voter registration signature of Tara Patel.

15             Also there is the exhibit -- excuse me,

16 there is the appeal itself when the Board ruled

17 invalid petition on February 18, it gave Mr. Scott 10

18 days to appeal.  That appeal was filed on Friday,

19 February 28, electronically when the Board was closed

20 for the day because of an electricity outage and I do

21 have e-mail confirmation and would be happy to supply

22 it to the record where the Deputy Director indicated

23 that the petition was -- the appeal was accepted and

24 this would be heard on today.
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1             So those will be the exhibits we will be

2 using.  Each of you have a copy, Director, Deputy

3 Director, and your legal counsel and what I would

4 like to do is to unless you want me -- you heard from

5 me the last time.  I can do an opening statement, or

6 if you want me to get right into presenting witness

7 testimony for you.  What's your pleasure?

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Maybe you can make a

9 summary statement, paragraph, several sentences which

10 brings us up to date and reminds us.  But you're

11 right, we did hear quite a bit of information last

12 time.

13             MS. BRUNNER:  So if you take a look at

14 Exhibit 3, what's really at issue here five

15 signatures are needed.  If we look at the back of the

16 petition and line No. 7 and this -- this is the

17 signature that was found to be not genuine.  There is

18 an NG code next to No. 7 in the margin for Tara Patel

19 at 1324 Nantucket, Columbus, as signed on February 4,

20 2014.

21             At the -- incorporated within the notice

22 of appeal are two affidavits, one from the circulator

23 of this petition Manasi Chatterji and the other from

24 the signer at line No. 7 Tara Patel, both of whom
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1 testified by affidavit that, No. 1, that Manasi

2 Chatterji witnessed Tara Patel signing the petition

3 and, No. 2, that Tara Patel says this is my signature

4 on the petition.

5             Now, I have them both here as witnesses

6 today to testify before the Board as to what was

7 included within their affidavits.  I may be able to

8 give you a little bit more background information

9 through the testimony of Manasi about the

10 circumstances under which this was signed and why it

11 is that Tara signed in script, in cursive rather than

12 printed signature which is what appears in Exhibit

13 No. 4 which is her voter registration and also in

14 Exhibit 3 which is her signature on her affidavit.

15             The argument that we -- that we've

16 deposited in the notice of appeal is that 3501.38 of

17 the Revised Code requires that a person sign the

18 petition and that they also may print their names so

19 as to clearly identify their signature.  I would

20 point out to the Board that in light of its decision

21 that it made in the Marco Miller protest of his

22 candidacy when it considered the signature of I

23 believe it was Chloe or Chelsea Beyer, it did not

24 differentiate between the fact that she signed under
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1 one name and not under her changed name, and I would

2 deposit to the Board that the fact that if you have

3 the benefit of the individual stating under oath that

4 it is her signature and that she did sign the

5 petition as well as the testimony of the circulator

6 that she witnessed her sign the petition and can

7 explain why she signed it in cursive rather than in

8 print, that under 3501.11(J) this Board has a duty to

9 consider that under its responsibilities and also

10 under (K), and it needs then to go forward, find this

11 signature to be valid with this new information upon

12 investigation and hearing, and place Mr. Scott on the

13 ballot in the Democratic race for State Central

14 Committee.

15             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What's -- what's (J)?

16             MS. BRUNNER:  (J) is administer oaths,

17 issue subpoenas, summon witnesses, and compel the

18 production of books, papers, records, and other

19 evidence in connection with an investigation so --

20 and if you go to the preamble of 3501.11, each board

21 shall exercise by a majority vote all powers granted

22 to the board under Title 35 and shall perform all the

23 duties imposed by laws, and the divisions under that

24 specify specific duties which in this case is the
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1 duty to hear this matter and investigate and consider

2 these matters in carrying out its duties under (K) to

3 certify the sufficiency and validity of petitions

4 that come before you that were filed with the Board.

5             MEMBER HAAS:  Just as a matter of

6 reference, Ms. Brunner --

7             MS. BRUNNER:  It's on page 2 of the

8 appeal.

9             MEMBER HAAS:  We've got, I think, got

10 your questions?

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Uh-huh.

12             MEMBER HAAS:  This is a matter of -- for

13 the reference to the issue with Chloe whatever her

14 last name was.

15             MS. BRUNNER:  Beyer.

16             MEMBER HAAS:  Our opinion, it was a split

17 opinion, 2-2 vote, in our opinion Chloe, the first

18 name, was clearly the same signature.  That at least

19 was my basis for voting for it.  And so they are not

20 the same issue or the same concerns about the

21 signatures.  At least from our standpoint the glass

22 was half full and from the other side it was half

23 empty but that was the difference in terms of that

24 was the feeling on that particular signature.
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1             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.  And I just --

2 so I am really clear 3501.38(B) in quotes says

3 "signatures shall be affixed in ink.  Signer may also

4 print the signer's name so as to clearly identify the

5 signer's signature."

6             MEMBER HAAS:  "May also."

7             MS. BRUNNER:  That's in 3501.38(B) so if

8 this Board is -- if this Board holds to its --

9             MEMBER HAAS:  So that means if you have a

10 hard to read signature, you can print your name

11 underneath that signature.  That does not mean that

12 your signature can differ between what's at the Board

13 of Elections and on the petition.

14             MS. BRUNNER:  It will be up to this Board

15 to decide how to apply that section.

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Did you want --

17 were there any other questions?

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes, I do.

19             Ms. Brunner, would you explain whether

20 there was any sort of unusual circumstance that

21 explains the manner in which whoever signed line 7

22 signed in the fashion that he or she did.

23             MS. BRUNNER:  Yeah.  I believe we will be

24 able to explain that with the testimony of Manasi
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1 Chatterji who is the circulator.

2             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Would you like to

3 preview that evidence for me?

4             MS. BRUNNER:  Certainly.  I would be

5 happy to, although the witnesses are here and they

6 can testify to it themselves.  But if you would like

7 me to preview it, essentially Manasi was a first-time

8 circulator so she had obtained instructions from an

9 experienced circulator about how to circulate a

10 petition.  She had been instructed that when people

11 sign the petition, they have to sign it in cursive.

12             She also looked at the signatures of the

13 two individuals who had signed the petition just

14 previous to Tara Patel, and those signatures were in

15 script, and so she instructed Tara Patel to sign in

16 cursive.  And that's what Tara Patel did.

17             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Thank you.

18             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.

19             Are you ready for testimony?

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Yes, I think so.

21             MS. BRUNNER:  At this time I would call

22 Manasi.  And I'll have you sit in this chair.  Before

23 you're seated if you'll raise your right hand so the

24 court reporter may swear you in and if you can face
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1 her and she'll deliver you the oath -- administer the

2 oath.

3             (Witness sworn.)

4             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.

5                         - - -

6                    MANASI CHATTERJI

7 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

8 examined and testified as follows:

9                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

10 By Ms. Brunner:

11        Q.   Please have a seat.  Manasi, please state

12 your name for the record.

13        A.   Manasi Chatterji.

14        Q.   And she pronounces -- I'm sorry I

15 butchered it.

16        A.   No.  That's okay.

17        Q.   And can you please supply the Board and

18 the record with your address.

19        A.   1277 Slade Avenue, Columbus, 43235, Ohio.

20        Q.   And I'm going to present to you what's

21 been marked as Exhibit 3.

22        A.   Okay.

23        Q.   If you could examine that, do you

24 recognize this?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   And what is this?

3        A.   This is a petition that I circulated for

4 Zachary Scott.

5        Q.   Okay.  Can you also turn this over and

6 look on the back of the petition and focus

7 specifically on line 7 and can you tell me what

8 signature is there at line 7?

9        A.   Tara Patel.

10        Q.   And did you witness Tara Patel signing

11 here at line 7 on Exhibit 3?

12        A.   I did.

13        Q.   And I also am going to present you with

14 Exhibit 2, and I'm going to turn to the affidavit

15 that says "Affidavit of Manasi Chatterji."

16        A.   That is correct.

17        Q.   And is this familiar to you?

18        A.   That is correct.

19        Q.   Can you look at the second page of this

20 affidavit and can you identify your signature?

21        A.   That is correct.

22        Q.   And did you sign this affidavit in the

23 presence of a notary public?

24        A.   I did.
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1        Q.   And is everything in this affidavit -- if

2 you were to read through each item, would you be able

3 to testify that these are truly correct statements

4 made in this affidavit?

5        A.   Yes.

6        Q.   And then if you could -- I think that's

7 all that I need at this point.  Let's go back to

8 Exhibit 3, which is the petition, and had you ever

9 circulated a petition before you circulated

10 Exhibit 3?

11        A.   I -- never.

12        Q.   And did you -- how did you know what to

13 do in circulating this petition?

14        A.   Well, I honestly didn't know.  I

15 circulated the petition, went to someone who

16 circulated before, asked them exactly what I would

17 need to do, and they said the signatures have to be

18 signed, the address has to be the correct address,

19 and if it is not, it is invalid.

20             And at this bottom portion which says

21 "Circulator's statement" I have to make sure that my

22 first and my last name is correct and I can have up

23 to the number 20 on there but if there are less

24 signatures, then it would be okay for them to take
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1 it.  And then signed my name, address, and Columbus,

2 Ohio.

3        Q.   So you just mentioned you were instructed

4 that whoever you presented the petition to actually

5 had to sign the petition.

6        A.   Correct.

7        Q.   And what did you take that to mean?

8        A.   Well, I followed the first signatures

9 and, you know, I've known my neighbor and she -- I

10 asked her specifically to sign it and she did, but

11 obviously the discrepancy is her signature.  So when

12 I did ask her to sign it, she put it in script just

13 to go with the other signatures.

14        Q.   Now, when you say your neighbor, which

15 line are you referring to?

16        A.   I am referring to line 7 for Tara -- Tara

17 Patel.

18        Q.   So -- so what did you tell her when she

19 signed the petition?

20        A.   I said sign -- I said when you sign the

21 petition, make sure you sign -- you, you know, sign

22 it like the others.  That's what I said to her,

23 that's the verb, and sign it like the others.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What was her name?
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1 Was it a three-part name?

2             THE WITNESS:  It's Tara.  I mean,

3 everything -- you know, you could call it Tara, but

4 the proper way to say it is Tara Patel.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  Thank you.

6        Q.   (By Ms. Brunner) And so I think you're

7 looking at lines -- look on the front here.  So

8 you're looking at lines 4 and 5 and do those appear

9 to be cursive or in print?

10        A.   Cursive.

11             MS. BRUNNER:  I have no further questions

12 of the witness.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  If I may.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Throat clearing

15 question here.

16                         - - -

17                      EXAMINATION

18 By Member Sinnott:

19        Q.   Would you repeat to the best of your

20 memory what you told Ms. Patel about how to sign the

21 petition.

22        A.   This is my first time circulating so what

23 I said to her -- because this previous individual

24 told me all of the signatures have to be signed and I
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1 took it as, you know, they have to be in scripted

2 manner.  So when I told her, I said, you know, look

3 at the previous thing and it's all signed because I

4 know she prints her signature.  So that is what my

5 direction was.

6        Q.   You told her to use a cursive signature.

7        A.   I told her to sign the petition like the

8 others.

9                         - - -

10                      EXAMINATION

11 By Member Haas:

12        Q.   First of all, I would like to say that I

13 think the Board has great respect for everybody that

14 goes out, particularly in a blizzard, and collects

15 names and does the hard work of getting candidates on

16 the ballot.

17             I did have just a curiosity question.  In

18 the number of signatures it says 20 on here.  Just

19 curious about that.

20        A.   Correct.

21        Q.   And there are 10.

22        A.   That is correct.  This -- I -- so that I

23 would be able to know how to fill all this out

24 properly, I specifically asked, you know, what number
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1 would go here so the experienced circulator advised

2 me that you should put 20, but if you get underneath

3 20, then that would be okay.  At the time of

4 submission --

5        Q.   Okay.  Just for future reference it's

6 referring to the number of signatures that you got.

7        A.   Okay.  That was not addressed to me so I

8 did not know that.

9             MEMBER HAAS:  Which I think cuts to me to

10 the heart of this issue but if you want to have.

11             MS. BRUNNER:  I have a follow-up question

12 to what Mr. Sinnott asked.

13                         - - -

14             DIRECT EXAMINATION (Continued)

15 By Ms. Brunner:

16        Q.   Manasi, looking at signatures 4 and 5 on

17 the first page, are the individuals who signed at

18 lines 4 and 5 neighbors of yours?

19        A.   They're my parents.

20        Q.   They're your parents, okay.  And then

21 does -- do you know, does Tara Patel know your

22 parents?

23        A.   Very well.

24        Q.   And is it -- is it fair to say that among
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1 your parents, yourself, and Tara Patel, that your

2 national origin is Asian Indian?

3        A.   Correct.

4        Q.   So is it a sense of community?

5        A.   Absolutely.

6        Q.   So is it -- if -- in your opinion if Tara

7 saw how your parents signed, would that influence her

8 to sign in the same manner in cursive as opposed to

9 the printing?

10        A.   Yes.  And the signatures are not so much

11 important.  It's what I told her, you know, how to do

12 it just so that I would be correct because this was

13 submitted the day of.  It was submitted -- you know,

14 I got these signatures the evening of, I should say.

15        Q.   What date was that?

16        A.   I can't remember.  I mean.

17        Q.   Let's look on the first date on the

18 petition.

19             MEMBER HAAS:  The 4th.

20        Q.   The first date on the petition that

21 somebody signed.

22        A.   Yeah.  All of these happened on the same

23 day.  So on the 4th, February 4, 2014, is when the

24 signature was signed, and I had to turn this in on
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1 the 5th of February which would have been the

2 following day.

3        Q.   And so you received this in the evening

4 on the 4th?

5        A.   Correct.

6        Q.   To your recollection do you know what the

7 weather was like the evening of February 4?

8        A.   Yes.  It was very bad.  I mean, it was

9 like -- I can't remember the exact digits, but it was

10 horrible.

11        Q.   And what was the -- what was the weather?

12        A.   It was heavy snow.  Schools closed on

13 that day.

14             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.

15             Any further questions for this witness

16 from the Board?

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Not from me.  Anyone

18 else?

19             Thank you very much for your testimony.

20             MS. BRUNNER:  I would like to now call

21 Ms. Tara Patel.

22             (Witness sworn.)

23             MS. BRUNNER:  Have a seat.  If it's okay

24 with the Board, I would like to have Manasi sit close
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1 by Ms. Patel in case there is any issue with

2 language.  So Manasi will be here if there is.

3             THE WITNESS:  English.

4                         - - -

5                       TARA PATEL

6 being first duly sworn, as prescribed by law, was

7 examined and testified as follows:

8                   DIRECT EXAMINATION

9 By Ms. Brunner:

10        Q.   Ms. Patel, I am Jennifer Brunner, and I

11 represent Zach Scott.  And if there is any difficulty

12 in -- if I talk too fast, if the Board members talk

13 too fast, will you tell us?  If you have any

14 difficulty understanding, will you stop me?

15        A.   Yeah, not good English.

16        Q.   Thank you.  So I am going to give you a

17 petition document, Exhibit 3.

18        A.   Yes.

19        Q.   And I would like for you to look at line

20 No. 7.

21        A.   Yes.

22        Q.   And can you tell me --

23        A.   That is.

24        Q.   -- is that your signature?
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1        A.   Yes.

2        Q.   Okay.  And that's your address, 1324

3 Nantucket?

4        A.   Yes.

5        Q.   Okay.  And who gave you this petition?

6 Who presented the petition to you?

7        A.   Manasi.

8        Q.   Manasi?

9        A.   Manasi.

10        Q.   And did -- and did she -- was she there

11 when you signed it?  Was she with you when you signed

12 it?

13        A.   Yeah.

14        Q.   Okay.  And I'm giving you Exhibit 4.  And

15 can you identify is your signature on this document?

16 Is that a yes?

17        A.   Yes, yes, I signed it.

18        Q.   You signed it, okay.  And then I am going

19 to give you Exhibit 2 which -- to which is attached

20 an affidavit, a document that says "Affidavit of Tara

21 Patel."

22        A.   Yes.

23        Q.   And is this your signature?

24        A.   Yes, my signature.
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1        Q.   On the affidavit which is Exhibit 2.  And

2 did you sign this with a notary present?

3        A.   Yes.

4        Q.   Yes?

5        A.   Yes.

6             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.  I have no other

7 questions of the witness.

8             Are there any questions from the Board?

9             MEMBER HAAS:  No questions.  I'm just

10 making a point again we appreciate very much people

11 who particularly make an effort to come down here

12 today in addition to participating and I have no

13 doubt that this is your name and I don't question

14 that.

15             One thing I hope that you both understand

16 and I hope that you both consider your political

17 activities and continue to have your -- add your

18 voice to this process.  This is not about the two of

19 you in my opinion.  Committees have a responsibility

20 to get themselves on the ballot.  And there is no

21 petition for any office that is more lenient and the

22 bar is lower than the State Central Committee races

23 so, again, this has nothing to do with the two of

24 you.



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

137

1             And this -- this has nothing to do with

2 you as a circulator, particularly a first time

3 circulator.  Actually you did a great job in my

4 opinion.  And but the committee itself and that

5 includes the chair, treasurer, political advisers,

6 anybody involved in this effort, perhaps even the

7 candidate, although oftentimes not, have an

8 obligation, and the bar is minimal, it is walking in

9 here with five signatures that match those on our

10 files.

11             And you made a very honest mistake.  I'm

12 guessing I probably made it in the past myself.  It's

13 a very clearcut, easy mistake to make --

14             MS. BRUNNER:  Mr. Chairman.

15             MEMBER HAAS:  -- in terms of asking for a

16 signature.  But, again, this isn't about individuals.

17 This is about -- this is about a candidacy on a

18 committee.  I have been before this Board making the

19 same appeal --

20             MS. BRUNNER:  Mr. Chairman, may the

21 witnesses be dismissed?

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Maybe not.

23             MEMBER HAAS:  You asked me.  I wanted to

24 explain my position to these two folks because I
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1 don't want --

2             MS. BRUNNER:  I feel it's intimidating.

3             MEMBER HAAS:  They're done.  They

4 testified.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  There may be a

6 question.  Want to give a minute to -- give a break

7 so she can explain, and we will come right back to

8 you.  He's not -- he's addressing generally.

9             Thanks for letting us do that.

10             MEMBER HAAS:  I appreciate it because

11 that is the point here and so any responsibility for

12 this does not lay with the two of you and there is no

13 doubt about your efforts or who you are.

14             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I do have a question for

15 Ms. Patel.  And if you want to cooperate as

16 interpreter, that's fine.  I understand her

17 circumstances.

18             MS. CHATTERJI:  Sure, sure.

19                         - - -

20                      EXAMINATION

21 By Member Sinnott:

22        Q.   Ms. Patel, can you tell us what Manasi

23 told you about how to sign the petition?

24        A.   No, no.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  You better interpret.

2        A.   You said -- yeah, you said.  You teach

3 me; I sign it.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  That wasn't clear to me.

5        A.   You say signature.  I signature.  Sorry.

6 I no good English.

7             MEMBER SINNOTT:  You're fine.

8             MEMBER HAAS:  You're fine.

9             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Thank you.

10             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you.  May the

11 witnesses be dismissed?

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  If there's no more

13 questions.

14             MS. BRUNNER:  Thank you both for your

15 testimony today.

16             THE WITNESS:  Thank you, everybody.  I

17 not good English.

18             MS. BRUNNER:  You did beautifully.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

20             MS. BRUNNER:  Do you want any closing?

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  There are no other

22 witnesses.  Then, yeah, I think closing remarks.  Any

23 other questions from the Board are in order.

24             MS. BRUNNER:  I have to -- for the record



Proceeding

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481

140

1 I have to take specific objection to any

2 characterization of what Manasi Chatterji told Tara

3 Patel as a mistake.  When you look at the plain

4 reading of the statute, it does say signature, and

5 printing is something that is optional.  Now, if it

6 so happens that Tara Patel has signed previously by

7 printing, it's clear that you -- you've seen she's

8 identified that she signed it in a different way but

9 there's nothing in the statute that says you have to

10 sign exactly the way that you signed when you

11 registered to vote.

12             And the Board now has evidence in front

13 of it that she did sign it, she signed it in the

14 presence of a circulator, that her affidavit was

15 signed in the presence of a notary, and it escapes me

16 how this Board can do anything but find that

17 signature valid and to place Mr. Scott on the ballot.

18             MEMBER HAAS:  Since you brought it up

19 again, did you read the section --

20             MS. BRUNNER:  I'm sorry?

21             MEMBER HAAS:  Can you read the section

22 about the printing again in the section where it says

23 it will allow printing?  Because I heard you say

24 additionally that the name could be printed but if
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1 you could read that section again.

2             MS. BRUNNER:  Certainly.  If you look at

3 Exhibit 3, there is both a signature and printing.

4 "Signature shall be affixed in ink.  Each signer may

5 also print the signer's name so as to clearly

6 identify the signer's signature."  When you take that

7 section of the Revised Code, 3501.38(B), it's

8 actually on page 3 of exhibit -- it's on page 3 of

9 your appeal, if this Board disallows the petition

10 because she signed in cursive and she didn't print,

11 then you're essentially saying that you're going to

12 require that an individual print and not sign a

13 petition when the plain language of the statute says

14 signature.  Every bit of testimony you heard today

15 even from Tara Patel herself was signature.

16             MEMBER HAAS:  The section you've read

17 twice now clearly says to verify the signature.  May

18 also be printed to verify the signature which we've

19 often seen in petitions when somebody has an

20 unreadable signature, that the name will be printed

21 in the box with it.

22             MS. BRUNNER:  With all due respect

23 3501.38 is the section of the Revised Code with

24 instructions for how petitions are to be completed
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1 and circulated.  It's not -- it's not a direct order

2 to the Board of Elections.  It is -- it is the

3 requirement of the law for what a circulator and a

4 signer must do in order for a petition to be counted

5 as valid by a Board of Elections.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  And, again, the citing

7 about printing is in reference to a clarification on

8 a signature.  It is not in lieu of a signature.

9             MS. BRUNNER:  That's right.  She

10 signed -- exactly.  She signed it.  She signed it in

11 cursive so even though it didn't match what was in

12 your record --

13             MEMBER HAAS:  Which is the point.

14             MS. BRUNNER:  -- it complies with the law

15 because the law is not about what is in the Board's

16 records.  The law is about what the circulator and

17 signer does in order to qualify a candidate on a

18 petition for the ballot.  It has nothing to do with

19 whether or not it matches the signature in the Board

20 of Elections printed.  If you have the testimony,

21 which you do, of the signer and the circulator that

22 it is what it is, I don't know how much clearer I can

23 make it.

24             MEMBER HAAS:  You can -- you know, we can
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1 go on as long as you would like, but the point here

2 is that the bar on these petitions is so low, it is a

3 committee's responsibility to give us five signatures

4 that match those on record.  I have been before this

5 Board of Elections defending candidates in the past

6 and losing on this argument as a matter of practice

7 multiple times and I've watched -- I've watched

8 attorneys lose this argument because -- because it is

9 a matter of practice, has been for obvious reasons,

10 that a signature on a petition needs to match that on

11 the file.

12             If we have a million signature petition

13 drive with massive fraud, we could never verify -- we

14 would be tied up forever to verify signatures that

15 don't match and the entire process could be shut down

16 and that's why there was a requirement that the

17 signature matches and that's why we've lost in the

18 past when we made this same argument.  And so, you

19 know, the signature on the petition and the signature

20 on record clearly do not match.

21             MS. BRUNNER:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Haas,

22 with all due respect there is no requirement in the

23 law that --

24             MEMBER HAAS:  There has been a
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1 requirement of practice.

2             MS. BRUNNER:  You only need five

3 signatures and there is no value judgment in the Code

4 if you only supply five valid signatures and

5 Mr. Scott did supply five valid signature and we have

6 proved it to you today.  Thank you.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Harold, were you

8 wishing to opine, or are you just listening?

9             MR. ANDERSON:  Sorry.  I was just

10 listening.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Kim, did you have a

12 question?

13             MEMBER MARINELLO:  No.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  All right.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I do have a specific

16 question to the county attorney.  We judge the

17 validity of petitions all the time on the basis of

18 comparing the signature on a petition to the

19 signature on record at the Board.  Why is that -- is

20 it that we do that?

21             MR. ANDERSON:  Because that's what the

22 Revised Code requires you to do to be able to

23 validate the sufficiency of the petition.  In other

24 words, the circulator is required to have so many
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1 electors eligible to sign or vote for a particular

2 office sign a petition to be placed on the ballot.

3 You're the repository of the records relative to

4 voter registration, so it's your responsibility to

5 make sure that the signatures affixed match the

6 signatures that are in your ballot database of

7 registered electors.

8             MEMBER HAAS:  We have spent countless

9 hours comparing signatures for a reason, in this case

10 the comparison of five signatures.

11             MS. BRUNNER:  For the record I've handed

12 you a copy of 3501.11 of the Revised Code which is

13 Board duties.  And under division (K) on page 2 your

14 duty specifically as set forth in the Revised Code is

15 to review, examine, and certify the sufficiency and

16 validity of petitions and nomination papers.  And

17 then it talks about after certification and returning

18 to the Secretary of State.  That would be in the case

19 of a statewide petition.

20             In addition, in division (J) which I have

21 read to you at the beginning of the section you are

22 also to investigate irregularity in performance

23 violations and basically hold hearings and

24 investigate.
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1             Now, in this case you had additional

2 evidence because clearly what the Board did in

3 examining the signatures they saw that it didn't

4 match, said that it was not genuine because it didn't

5 have any affirmation, but you are a quasi-judicial

6 body.  More evidence has been presented to you on

7 appeal which graciously you gave to Mr. Scott.

8             So now that you have the truth and the

9 facts, you can't deny the signature under the law.

10 You have a duty because -- this is different from a

11 situation like we were talking about with Perry

12 Township.  In this case this is about what you do.

13 And if you ignore what you just heard in front of

14 you, even if you dislike the fact that somebody only

15 squeaked through with four signatures on their face

16 that matched and the fifth one with additional

17 evidence that matched, it doesn't matter whether you

18 don't like that or not.  Five signatures is five

19 signatures, and he's entitled to be on the ballot.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, Ms. Brunner,

21 fundamentally you are not suggesting because a

22 witness comes before a Board and says something the

23 Board has to believe the witness; that's not your

24 position, right?
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1             MS. BRUNNER:  If you choose to disbelieve

2 these two witnesses, that is the purview of the

3 Board.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Indeed.  Ms. Brunner,

5 there is -- a hypothetical comes to mind.  It's a

6 simple one that I think strikes at the heart of this.

7 If there was an instance where somebody signed a

8 petition not by offering his or her regular signature

9 but instead perhaps on instruction of the circulator

10 just made an X, and you submitted that petition to

11 the Board, the Board rejected the signature, is it

12 your view that you would be at liberty in a

13 proceeding such as this to come forward and explain

14 that the elector had placed an X instead of his legal

15 signature and the Board would accept that proposition

16 and validate the petition?

17             MS. BRUNNER:  There is actually another

18 section of the Revised Code, I believe it's 3505.19,

19 that deals with that particular issue about when a

20 person signs a petition by marking X and that is if

21 they are unable to sign their name.  So a person

22 would not have the option to sign their name with an

23 X even upon instruction if they could, in fact, sign

24 their name and that's a separate statute of the
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1 Revised Code, so I don't think that analogy really

2 works very respectfully in this particular situation.

3 I can look it up for you if you would like.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I think it is

5 important -- and it's not so much the X.  Let's not

6 bog down on the X.  Perhaps the person puts Y or

7 something else that is not his or her signature.  So

8 fill in the blank in the hypothetical as to what is

9 scrawled there so long as it is not the signature of

10 the person as it's registered at the Board.

11             MS. BRUNNER:  Well, it's -- I really

12 can't speak because our two witnesses have been

13 dismissed, but you're dealing with two individuals

14 from clearly an immigrant community.  And if you look

15 yourselves at the printed version of Tara Patel's

16 signature and the script version of Tara Patel's

17 signature, which one is easier for you to read?  I

18 would suggest that any reasonable person would say

19 the printed version is easier to read.

20             I don't -- I don't doubt that she has

21 used the script signature in particular situations

22 where she has been told it needs a signature.  But if

23 you look at the fact that someone comes to this

24 country, gains citizenship, attempts to follow the
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1 rules, I'm sure she wants people to be able to read

2 the name of who she is.  I don't know that anyone

3 before Manasi Chatterji told her she actually had to

4 use a signature as opposed to printing.  The bottom

5 line is she testified under oath that it's her

6 signature and she signed it.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Any other questions?

8             Appreciate your representation,

9 Ms. Brunner.

10             MS. BRUNNER:  Appreciate the Board's

11 attention to this matter.  Thank you.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  And let's restate what

13 we have before us.  We have an appeal, don't we?

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yes, sir.  It's an

15 appeal to Zach -- Zach Scott's petition for State

16 Democratic -- candidate for the Democratic State

17 Central Committee in the 16th Senate District be

18 placed on the ballot.

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  One signature.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yes.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Revolves around.

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Our Board had

23 determined at the last meeting he had four valid

24 signatures and that did not meet the threshold of the
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1 five necessary to be on the -- be a candidate.  He

2 has now filed an appeal.

3             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  What is the proper

4 motion?  Is that to accept the appeal, or are we

5 dealing with one signature?  How does that?

6             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I would think you are

7 dealing with one signature right now, if you are

8 willing to accept that signature or -- or, right now,

9 you have voted not to place this on the ballot.

10 There has been an appeal to place this candidate on

11 the ballot.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I think a

13 straightforward motion to accept or not accept the

14 appeal.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yes.

16             MEMBER HAAS:  Based on the fact I do not

17 believe, just as counsel mentioned that X signature,

18 when a -- even if a circulator told them to sign that

19 to be accepted, I think -- I think that along that

20 questioning and along with past practice with this

21 Board, that the obligation of the committees that

22 file a petition on behalf of a candidacy it's the

23 committee's obligation to provide five signatures

24 that match those on the record, and so I would move
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1 that we not accept the appeal.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  There is a motion on

3 the floor to not accept the appeal.

4             MEMBER HAAS:  That's right.  I would make

5 that motion.

6             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

7             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I would second it for

8 this reason:  It may be that there was confusion or

9 language barrier or some erroneous instruction.  I

10 don't know what prompted the signature that appears

11 on the petition at line 7.  In no respect would that

12 be the signature that the Board knows to be the

13 signature of Tara Patel.  But there is no match and

14 for that reason I second Mr. Haas's motion.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Any more comments?

16             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Let's do roll-call.

17             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Roll-call.  Kim

18 Marinello.

19             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Greg Haas.

21             MEMBER HAAS:  Yes.

22             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Douglas Preisse.

23             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  No.

24             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  And --
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1             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Brad Sinnott.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Brad Sinnott.

3             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Yes.

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The motion carries.

5             The next item on the agenda would be the

6 Selena Miller appeal.  She's appealing her candidacy

7 for the 3rd Congressional District and for the

8 candidate for Democratic State Central Committee 15th

9 Senate District.

10             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  In your packets

11 there is a one pager here.  Ms. Miller filed a

12 petition to run as Bill said for 3rd Congressional

13 District in the Democrat primary and also as a

14 candidate in the 15th Ohio Senate District for a seat

15 as a Democratic State Central Committee.  Her -- her

16 petitions were filed deficient because on both

17 petitions that she filed the circulator statement was

18 not completed.

19             Ms. Miller is with us today.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

21             MS. MILLER:  Good evening.

22             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Thanks for waiting by

23 the way.

24             MS. MILLER:  Oh, no problem.  I'm here to
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1 file an appeal for both of the filings for the

2 Central Board and also for the record into Congress.

3 And the reason for my appeal is that I personally was

4 under the impression that my paperwork was properly

5 filed.  I was notified by Columbus Dispatch on the

6 7th of February telling me that I was classified

7 quote-unquote as a running partner for the

8 Representative position.  I had no reason to believe

9 at the time that I filed -- that I overlooked the

10 back which would be considered as invalid signatures.

11             I meet the maximum amount of signatures.

12 For the Representative of Congress you needed 50.  I

13 had 73.  For State Central Committee you needed 5 and

14 I have 24.  And the only argument I could see as far

15 as the invalid signature is the one for the

16 circulation on the reverse side.

17             And during that time after it was quoted

18 in the Columbus newspaper, I had to leave so there

19 was no way I could have made up the signature even

20 though I turned it in in enough time.  So I would

21 like to be granted some leniency in a remedy to be

22 placed on a ballot or in the event that the

23 Representative to Congress position would be too

24 much, I could still maybe run for State Central
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1 Committee which is a -- quoted as an unpaid position.

2 But I am very well -- you know, I am very interested

3 in the both.

4             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is that your

5 statement?

6             MS. MILLER:  I'm sorry?

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Does that conclude

8 your statement?

9             MS. MILLER:  Well, I have the Columbus

10 Dispatch article, and I don't know the rules or the

11 regulations for when you're, you know, kind of in the

12 public eyesight a Democrat, posted as a Democrat.

13 There is a lot of people that's out there rooting on

14 me and I was under the impression and there was the

15 article floating around in Columbus and this

16 particular journalist comes from Washington, D.C.,

17 believe it or not, so and it was posted for

18 February 6.

19             Did you get a copy?  I gave it to

20 somebody.

21             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  No.  But I think we

22 all saw it.

23             MS. MILLER:  Okay.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Could we have a
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1 statement from the Board as to what the Board's

2 action was and the position we're in today?

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  The action of the

4 Board at our last meeting when we considered

5 candidates, issues for the ballot was that the

6 petitions in both these instances, both for the State

7 Central Committee spot and for the Congressional

8 spot, were not valid due to the circulator's

9 statement on all part petitions, on both those

10 petitions, were not completed.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  How were they not

12 completed?

13             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  As you see, this,

14 for example, was for the Democrat State Central

15 Committee spot.  If you see on the back of both of

16 those part petitions, there is no signed circulator

17 statement of anybody attesting to the fact that they

18 witnessed the signatures be placed on this petition.

19 It's the same case for the petition for the 3rd

20 Congressional District also.

21             That has always been -- an incomplete

22 circulator statement has always been reason to

23 invalidate a part petition or a full petition, if it

24 was the case all part petitions contained in the
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1 petition.

2             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Fatal flaw.

3             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  That is correct,

4 fatal flaw.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  That was the

6 condition.  The mutterings of us up here is fatal

7 flaw.  That's my recollection too.  Specifically

8 because I did nearly the exact same thing and forgot

9 to sign it several years ago on exactly the same

10 petition, State Senate.

11             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Those were the

12 grounds that were brought to your attention at our

13 last meeting as the reason for the staff

14 recommendation to invalidate both of these petitions.

15             MEMBER HAAS:  I have to concur.  I think

16 everybody here has made the same mistake at least

17 once over the years but also always with the same

18 response, that it's a fatal flaw, that it really

19 can't be -- it can't be adjusted later.  And it's --

20 I think all of our experiences have been we've both

21 experienced it and made the same mistake but also

22 with the same outcome.

23             MS. MILLER:  Now, did I hear him say that

24 you needed a signature of someone witnessing?
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1             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Yes, ma'am.

2             MS. MILLER:  My understanding the

3 signature just had to be me, the person who was

4 circulating.

5             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Well, that is

6 identifying -- Mr. Chairman, if I might, that is

7 identified for our purposes by the person who does

8 fill out the back part of the part petition where it

9 says -- gives a formal statement of who actually

10 circulated the petition.

11             MS. MILLER:  Okay.

12             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  In the case of

13 both of these petitions there was no way for the

14 Board -- because that section had been left blank for

15 us to make a determination who had actually

16 circulated the petition and, thus, that historically

17 has always been a fatal flaw to any part petition for

18 any office that's filed.

19             MS. MILLER:  Okay.  And is there another

20 step for appeal if I wanted to appeal hereafter?

21             MR. ANDERSON:  You can always appeal to

22 the court system.

23             MS. MILLER:  To where?

24             MR. ANDERSON:  Court system, a legal -- a
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1 lawsuit.

2             MS. MILLER:  Which court system?

3             MR. ANDERSON:  I can't --

4             MS. MILLER:  You mean a lawsuit.

5             MR. ANDERSON:  Yeah.  It's a lawsuit.

6             MS. MILLER:  Okay.  A lot of people were

7 for me and it was publicized and that gives no

8 bearing, that public announcement?

9             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  If you're talking

10 about the Dispatch story?

11             MS. MILLER:  I'm talking about public

12 announcement.  The theory is if you never got married

13 but if the public announces you as a married couple,

14 then they would --

15             MEMBER HAAS:  There is one individual

16 down the street who may view the Dispatch as a legal

17 document but outside of.

18             MS. MILLER:  All right.  I was just

19 asking.  Thank you.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  We're sorry.

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I guess if the

22 Board does not want to accept, there is really no

23 action the Board needs to do.

24             MR. ANDERSON:  No.  That's correct.
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1             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Sorry.

2             MS. MILLER:  No problem.  I'll try again

3 next year.

4             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Absolutely.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Have your friends look

6 at it before you file.

7             MS. MILLER:  Yeah.  I'll make sure I look

8 at the reverse side.  That's what it's really about.

9 Thanks.

10             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  We have one more

11 consideration and then a few administrative actions.

12             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Zachary Zaerr.  No, I

13 don't see him in here.  Since there is no one here.

14             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Where is he?

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I don't know.  It is

16 an appeal.  You already voted him off the ballot.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is there substantive

18 material here?

19             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Yes.  He did file

20 an appeal.  We do have a research -- some research we

21 did on this.  He was denied access to the ballot due

22 to insufficient signatures as a minor party candidate

23 for the Ohio House.  Mr. Zaerr needed 25 valid

24 signatures, he only had 24, and thus not meeting the
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1 minimum threshold.  We recommended to you and you

2 took action upon denying him access to the ballot.

3             He filed an appeal and some of the

4 research here is in front of you.  It really comes

5 down to the back page of this section.  He has made

6 an appeal of line 11 on petition 538.  This signature

7 was disallowed because it says that that voter --

8 that voter signed stating 1981 Indianola Avenue.  We

9 did find the person in question but that person in

10 question is registered at 1980 Indianola Avenue so

11 that person is not registered at the address that

12 they purported to on the part petition; and, thus,

13 the staff invalidated that signature.  If that all

14 makes sense to the Board.

15             MEMBER HAAS:  That's definitely a 1 and

16 that's definitely a 0.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  So no action

18 necessary?

19             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I don't believe.

20             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  If it is the will

21 of the Board to not act upon the appeal, he's not on

22 the ballot currently so if you are not going to take

23 any action to change that.

24             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Time for talking about
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1 kids.

2             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The next item on the

3 agenda would be the Kids Voting contract.  As you all

4 know, we've had a relationship with the Kids Voting

5 for some time.  I guess it started with Matt

6 Damschroder when he was the Director here and we

7 have -- Kids Voting offers us an opportunity to do

8 Youth at the Booth where we bring in over a thousand

9 kids during a major election to actually go into each

10 polling location and work our DREs.

11             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is this annual --

12 isn't this a bigger figure than we have considered in

13 the past?

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I think --

15             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  This is what we

16 did the last time.

17             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Is it?

18             MEMBER SINNOTT:  45?

19             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I thought it was

20 lower.

21             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  They would love more.

22             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I do have to

23 state since you brought his name up that Jeff Cabot,

24 the executive director of Kids Voting Central Ohio,
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1 did plan to be here today, but due to our moving the

2 Board meeting to today I inadvertently didn't tell

3 him about it, and so he planned to be here but had a

4 conflict.  Due to the length of the meeting probably

5 is actually glad he didn't.

6             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.  How much --

7 they are a central Ohio organization, right?

8             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yes and no.  They

9 recently became part of Kids Voting America, so they

10 are kind of branching out a little more.  Kids Voting

11 America -- Kids Voting Ohio is modeled after Kids

12 Voting America.  Kids Voting America is based in

13 Kansas, I believe.

14             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  Kansas City.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Kansas City, they can

16 no longer operate due to some funding problems so

17 Kids Voting Ohio or Columbus, and both Dana and I are

18 on the Board, the Kids Voting agreed to take over the

19 national organization so.

20             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay.

21             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Okay.  I move that the

22 Board authorize the Director and Deputy Director to

23 enter into a contract with Kids Voting of Central

24 Ohio of an amount not to exceed $45,000 and thank
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1 Kids Voting for their continued participation in the

2 Franklin County Board of Elections' Youth at the

3 Booth program.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Second.

5             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

6 Motion carries.

7             The next item on the agenda is the EMCS

8 contract.  They are the folks that write our voter

9 registration program.  As you all know, we have a

10 stand-alone voter registration program.  They wrote

11 this program many, many years ago.  They maintain it

12 for us.  They keep it running smoothly.  We've

13 been -- we are still able to do the bridge with the

14 Secretary of State, and we've had no problems with

15 them maintaining our voter registration system.

16             As a matter of fact, we've looked at big

17 box companies ES&S and some others at their voter

18 registration systems that they sell and because we've

19 managed to tailor our system to our specific needs

20 and none of the big box companies have come close to

21 providing us the type of service and things that we

22 are now becoming used to with our voter registration

23 system.

24             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Bill, when does this
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1 next come up for bid or some sort of competitive

2 opportunity?  I understand right now all we are doing

3 is staying with the original vendor because --

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I think it's three

5 years?  I have to look.  I'm not sure.

6             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  I actually think

7 in the past, Mr. Sinnott, we've determined this is

8 really a sole source type situation due to the

9 uniqueness of this company being the ones who

10 actually wrote the program for this.  And, thus,

11 there is no other vendor out there capable of

12 servicing this database.

13             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Does EMCS then get our

14 business in perpetuity?

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Until we decide to

16 change your voter registration system.  You know, and

17 we've -- Mr. Sinnott, we have looked at other voter

18 registration systems.  We've brought them into our

19 office and had them explain what they could do and

20 each time -- I've done it twice since I have been

21 here, and each time they've come in and we've had all

22 the staff sit down and tell them what we get out of

23 our current system and ask if they could replicate it

24 and none of the companies that we've -- none of the
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1 national companies that are currently in the voter

2 registration business can provide the type of product

3 that we are currently using.

4             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I am glad you are

5 regularly looking at that.

6             I'll move that the Board authorize the

7 Director and Deputy Director to enter into a contract

8 with Election Management Consulting Services in the

9 amount of $48,620.25 for continued support on the

10 Integrity system in calendar year 2014.

11             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

12             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

13             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

14 Motion carries.

15             The next item is a personnel matter.  We

16 have on the Therapak side still another vacancy in

17 the Voter Services Department, and we would like to

18 bring on Nikki Campbell.

19             MEMBER HAAS:  I move that the Board hire

20 Nikki Campbell to a position in the Voter Services

21 Department beginning Wednesday, March 5, 2014, at a

22 salary of $14.67 per hour.

23             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

24             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.
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1             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  I am going to vote for

2 it, but just for discussion is Nikki related -- don't

3 we have another Campbell around here?

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Steve Campbell.

5             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  One of your guys?

6             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Yeah.

7             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Related?

8             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Wife.

9             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Okay, okay.

10             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Wife of Steve

11 Campbell.

12             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  There is a motion on

13 the floor.

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

15 Motion carries.

16             The next item on the agenda voter -- we

17 have a voter registration challenge.

18             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  If I might, there

19 was a challenge filed about 10 days ago by a John A.

20 Guthrie challenging the right to vote of John A.

21 Guthrie, Jr., who we believe is his son since he says

22 he does not live at that address any more, 7679

23 Foxboro Court.  Mr. Guthrie, Jr., did vote from that

24 address in 2012 and 2010.
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1             We have no reason to doubt the validity

2 of John A. Guthrie, Sr.'s statement but our

3 recommendation to the Board because there is somebody

4 living at that residence who said he doesn't live

5 there any more to put this voter in what we call a

6 pending status which will not remove them from the

7 list of registered voters but require them to vote in

8 the future from a new address at a residence that is

9 theirs.

10             So this would remove -- putting him in

11 pending status removes them from being in the poll

12 book and if John Guthrie goes to vote in -- on

13 election day, his name will not appear in the poll

14 book, but he will be able to cast a provisional

15 ballot and update his address to a new residence

16 accordingly.

17             MEMBER MARINELLO:  I move that the Board

18 place the registration of John A. Guthrie, Jr.,

19 purportedly of 7679 Foxboro Court, Columbus, Ohio, in

20 a pending status.

21             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

22             MEMBER SINNOTT:  There is.

23             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

24 Motion -- motion carries.
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1             MEMBER HAAS:  I want to know what

2 Mrs. John A. Guthrie, Sr., has to say about this.

3             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  The next item on the

4 agenda is certify write-in candidates.  You have a

5 list Exhibit A in front of you and take a look at

6 them.

7             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  These are all

8 candidates that the Board staff determined were

9 timely filed and eligible for the races in which they

10 filed to be a write-in candidate.

11             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Then I move that the

12 list of electors appearing on Exhibit A be certified

13 as valid write-in candidates for the May 6, 2014,

14 Primary Election.

15             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

16             MEMBER HAAS:  Second.

17             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

18 Motion carries.

19             Next item is candidate withdrawal.  We

20 had Frederick LaMarr, candidate for 26th House

21 District, withdraw his candidacy.

22             MEMBER HAAS:  I move that the Board

23 accept the request of Frederick LaMarr to withdraw as

24 a candidate for the 26th Ohio House District and that
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1 his name shall not appear on the May 6, 2014, Primary

2 Election ballot.

3             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

4             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

5             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Yes.

6             MEMBER HAAS:  Yes.

7             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  I need one more vote.

8             CHAIRMAN PREISSE:  Aye.

9             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Motion carries.

10             The next item on the agenda is Dave

11 Girves, Democrat for the 24th Ohio House District,

12 also withdrew.

13             MEMBER MARINELLO:  I move that the Board

14 accept the request of Dave Girves to withdraw as a

15 candidate for the 24th Ohio House District and that

16 his name shall not appear on the May 6, 2014, Primary

17 Election ballot.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

19             MEMBER HAAS:  Second.

20             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor say

21 aye.  Motion carries.

22             The next item is a John Gilligan.  He is

23 a candidate for Democrat State Central Committee 16th

24 Senate District(Man).
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1             MEMBER HAAS:  I move that the Board

2 accept the request of John Gilligan to withdraw as a

3 candidate for Democrat State Central Committee Man

4 16th Ohio Senate District and that his name shall not

5 appear on the May 6, 2014, Primary Election ballot.

6             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Is there a second?

7             MEMBER MARINELLO:  Second.

8             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor.

9 Motion carries.

10             The E.E. Ward contract extension is

11 currently at the Prosecutor's Office so we'll address

12 that at our next Board meeting.  And it would be our

13 last extension on this contract.  We should have that

14 at the next meeting.  I talked to Chris before we

15 started.

16             MR. ANDERSON:  Okay.  They put stuff in

17 my box.

18             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Unless there is

19 anything else before the Board.

20             MEMBER SINNOTT:  How could there be?

21             DEPUTY DIRECTOR WALCH:  If I might, it's

22 not an agenda item but would it be -- would it meet

23 with the approval of the Board to ask the court

24 reporter to do an expedited copy of the transcript of
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1 today's proceeding due to the fact we did have a tie

2 vote on a protest filed?  My request would be, if you

3 are all in agreement, to go ahead and ask for an

4 expedited copy of the transcript because that is part

5 of what we have to file with the Secretary of State's

6 Office as part of the tie vote.

7             MEMBER HAAS:  My question is how

8 important are the tie votes?  We did ultimately

9 conclude --

10             MR. ANDERSON:  They are tie votes.  They

11 should still be sent to the Secretary even though the

12 petition is not -- well, is invalid.

13             MEMBER HAAS:  I guess two separate things

14 real quick for the record, I do think that we've got

15 to consider the timeliness of our Board meetings when

16 it comes to the cutoff dates.  I mean, the reality

17 was that my view Mr. Miller was kind of in a double

18 kind of a whipsaw today in that we told him he was

19 valid.  He had a ton of -- 14 names which in terms of

20 tracking people down for an individual is very

21 difficult and then 6 ultimately filed so, you know,

22 and then he has no appeal process after that.

23             And to me I'm not raising this as a

24 complaint or a challenge to any of our positions but
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1 just a thought that we need to consider and that we

2 need to maybe make recommendations.  But once a Board

3 has acted to put something on the ballot, for them to

4 lose their position on the ballot with no chance to

5 appeal, you know, had he -- had the Board recognized

6 the flaws in those signatures and had he been ruled

7 off, he would have had the timeframe to prove himself

8 correct, and he very may well have 50 correct

9 signatures on that petition, but we'll never know.

10             And so it's not an issue the Board --

11 what the Board does.  We make mistakes at times on

12 signatures because it's very difficult, and we all

13 experience it.  But once the Board has acted, it

14 seems to me like there needs to be some kind of

15 process that once we've told somebody they are on the

16 ballot and then we come in and they get hit and

17 they've got no recourse.  I mean with the Board.

18 Obviously he's got --

19             MEMBER SINNOTT:  One thing that occurs to

20 me it is possible to protest the Board's decision not

21 to include signatures too.

22             MEMBER HAAS:  Right.  That was my point.

23             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Tom Reddy situation,

24 that was what was going on there.  Tom would go out
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1 and he would challenge through the statutory process

2 our initial decision not to count signatures and that

3 would boost his number as there was a protestor who

4 was trying to reduce his number.

5             MEMBER HAAS:  Right, right.

6             MEMBER SINNOTT:  Well, thanks to everyone

7 for their patience.  We are now at 4.5 hours.

8             MEMBER HAAS:  Second quick one in terms

9 of staff, I would like to see some kind of -- you

10 know, the vote that we took on follow-up in terms of

11 the signatures and see something, some kind of

12 summary on that so it's clear we are all on the same

13 page.

14             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  Okay.

15             MEMBER SINNOTT:  I move we adjourn.

16             DIRECTOR ANTHONY:  All those in favor of

17 adjourning say aye.

18             (Thereupon, the meeting was concluded at

19 6:34 p.m.)

20                         - - -

21

22

23

24
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1                      CERTIFICATE

2             I do hereby certify that the foregoing is

3 a true and correct transcript of the proceedings

4 taken by me in this matter on Tuesday, March 4, 2014,

5 and carefully compared with my original stenographic

6 notes.

7

8

                     _______________________________

9                      Karen Sue Gibson, Registered

                     Merit Reporter.
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